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BOUNTY OF CARE ETHOS
With a rich tradition of love and care,
Fronditha Care has been advocating for
the care of the elderly since 1977 and
providing aged care services for elders
and their families in Australia since 1983.

Our Bounty of Care ethos drives us to
go beyond physical and health needs to
embrace a culturally rich environment
that inspires celebration, fosters
belonging and enhances wellbeing.

OUR VALUES

Respect

Do Right

Bring Joy

With exceptional residential facilities and community services, we provide
choices and tailored care plans to empower elders to live the way they
want, and enjoy what they love.
OUR MANTRA IS INSTILLED IN EVERYTHING WE DO:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Love and care for our elders.
Respect and value we have for our colleagues.
Joy and connection we celebrate with our communities.
Recognising the values of cultural, spiritual and emotional needs.
Empowering elders to live the way they want, enjoying what they love.
A ripple effect that starts with us, and flows through our elders, their
families into the community and industry.
Leading by example to inspire a better world.

Inspire
Better

HIGHLIGHTS
$8,031,204
GROWTH IN
FIXED ASSESTS

NUMBER OF
RESIDENTS WE
CARED FOR IN
2017-2018
FINANCIAL
YEAR

797

Total number
of Radiothon
pledges

3,886
NUMBER OF
VOLUNTEER
HOURS

= 534
NUMBER OF HOME
CARE PACKAGES
DELIVERED

357

number of people our
Care Consultants
assisted

11%
GROWTH
IN
STAFF
NUMBERS

240+

HEALTH CARE AVERAGE
SNAP SHOT

99.07%

OCCUPANCY RATE FOR
RESIDENTIAL FACILITIES
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PRESIDENT’S
REPORT
We are defined by our bounty of care, but that
bounty can only exist with the extraordinary hard
work and commitment from its people.
They are a hugely generous and selfless group,
whether they are staff, volunteers or socially
responsible stakeholders, who truly care for our
community’s most frail and vulnerable.
This reporting period, that was most apparent
during our biennial Radiothon. More than
$137,000 was pledged to help Fronditha Care
build memory support units to care for the
elderly with severe dementia.
This year the Board signed off on a large capital
works program to ensure future demands are
met and budgeted for. While we are working
on the redevelopment of existing facilities, the
potential for more locations is something the
Board is considering. We will wait to see if our
ACAR applications for more beds are successful
in 2019.
Helping tally the donations, it was easy to see
that the heroes of the Radiothon were the many
pensioners and humble community groups who
gave what they had.
Many had first-hand stories of how dementia had
ravaged a loved one, pushing them to donate.
As a charity, any surplus the organisation makes
is reinvested to maintain and increase our care
services.
Our capital works program has been dedicated
to ensuring our community is properly looked
after in a culturally appropriate way. That is why
the Board has worked hard in approving the 92bed redevelopment of the St Albans facility and
the purchase of new property at Mt Martha and
Mulgrave.
We hope that as the ageing population increases,
our service provision will adapt and keep up with
demand.
The introduction of the second Labour
Agreement is just one of the steps the Board
was very happy to see implemented, as it
ensures our Greek speaking personal carer
staffing numbers are met over the next three
years.
I would also like to take this opportunity to thank
our troop of more than 200 volunteers, who
were rightfully recognised this reporting period

for their selfless work and care for our elderly.
Three Fronditha Care volunteers were also
nominated as Hotham Multicultural Leading
Citizens in 2018.
I would also like to pay tribute to our late Life
Governors, members and benefactors, in
particular Freda Antoniou, Helen Pagonis, Andrew
Theodoulou and Anthoula Andrianakos who
passed away in the last 12 months. The families
should also be commended for thinking of
Fronditha Care and opting to receive donations
for Fronditha Care instead of floral tributes.
The Board also expresses its gratitude to
the Templestowe, Thornbury, and St Albans
Auxiliaries and the Hippocrates Association for
their ongoing support. The various fundraising
events they organised this financial year have
raised awareness and much needed funds for
our mission.
Fronditha Care’s CEO, George Lekakis AO,
his executive team and his dedicated staff
are to be congratulated for their hard work in
ensuring that all our accreditation standards and
strategic objectives are met. Their commitment,
professionalism, and willingness to embrace
opportunities resulted in another excellent year,
achieving many important program and budget
outcomes.
FINALLY, I WOULD LIKE TO ACKNOWLEDGE
THE WORK AND COMMITMENT OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS AND THANK THEM FOR THEIR
DEDICATION AND PROFESSIONALISM. THEY
TOO ARE VOLUNTEERS OF THE ORGANISATION
AND I THANK THEM FOR THE TIME.
OUR BOUNTY OF CARE WILL CONTINUE.

Nick Thodos
President

ΑΝΑΦΟΡΆ
ΠΡΟΈΔΡΟΥ

Ο Θησαυρός Φροντίδας μας ορίζει. Αυτός
ωστόσο μπορεί να υπάρξει μόνο σε οργανισμούς
με αφοσιωμένους και σκληρά εργαζόμενους
ανθρώπους.
Είναι μια εξαιρετικά γενναιόδωρη και ανιδιοτελής
ομάδα ανθρώπων, ανεξάρτητα από το αν είναι μέλη,
προσωπικό, εθελοντές ή φορείς κοινωνικής ευθύνης,
που δείχνουν πραγματικό ενδιαφέρον για τα πιο
ευαίσθητα και ευάλωτα μέλη της κοινότητάς μας.
Την παρούσα περίοδος αναφοράς, αυτό ήταν πιο
έκδηλο κατά τη διάρκεια του διετούς Ραδιοεράνου
μας. Οι προσφορές για την κατασκευή μονάδων
υποστήριξης μνήμης που θα υποστηρίξουν
ηλικιωμένους σε προχωρημένο στάδιο άνοιας
ξεπέρασαν τα $137,000.
Αυτή τη χρονιά το συμβούλιο ενέκρινε ένα μεγάλο
κεφαλαιακό πρόγραμμα για να διασφαλίσει την
επιτυχία και προϋπολογισμό των μελλοντικών
κινήσεων. Ενώ εργαζόμαστε για την ανακατασκευή
υπαρχουσών εγκαταστάσεων, η επέκταση σε
περισσότερες τοποθεσίες είναι κάτι που εξετάζει το
Συμβούλιο . Περιμένουμε να δούμε αν οι αιτήσεις
στην ACAR για περισσότερα κρεβάτια το 2019 είναι
επιτυχείς.
Αυτό που παρατήρησα όταν βοηθούσα να
συγκεντρωθούν οι δωρεές, ήταν ότι οι ήρωες του
ραδιοεράνου ήταν οι συνταξιούχοι και οι κοινοτικές
οργανώσεις που με ταπεινότητα προσέφεραν ό,τι
είχαν.
Πολλοί μοιράστηκαν τις προσωπικές τους εμπειρίες
για το πώς η άνοια κατέστρεψε τον αγαπημένο τους,
παρακινώντας τους να κάνουν δωρεά.
Ως φιλανθρωπικός οργανισμός, κάθε πλεόνασμα
επανεπενδύεται για να διατηρήσουμε και να
επεκτείνουμε τις υπηρεσίες μας.
Το κεφαλαιακό μας πρόγραμμα είναι αφιερωμένο
στην εξασφάλιση την κατάλληλη πολιτισμική
φροντίδα για την κοινότητα μας στο μέλλον. Αυτός
είναι ο λόγος για τον οποίο το Διοικητικό Συμβούλιο
, μετά από σκληρή εργασία, ενέκρινε το σχέδιο
κατασκευής ενός οίκου ευγηρίας 92 κλινών στο St
Albans και ενέκρινε την αγορά νέων ακινήτων στο Mt
Martha και Mulgrave.
Καθώς ο γηράσκων πληθυσμός αυξάνεται, στόχος
μας είναι να εξασφαλίσουμε ότι το πρόγραμμα
υπηρεσιών μας θα προσαρμοστεί και θα ανταποκριθεί
στις ανάγκες του μέλλοντος.
Η ανακοίνωση της δεύτερης Εργασιακής Σύμβασης
είναι μία από τις πρωτοβουλίες που με μεγάλη χαρά
είδε να εφαρμόζεται το Διοικητικό Συμβούλιο,
καθώς εξασφαλίζει ότι ο αριθμός των ελληνόφωνων
φροντιστών στη ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑ θα αυξηθεί τα επόμενα
τρία χρόνια.
Θα ήθελα επίσης να αδράξω την ευκαιρία και να
ευχαριστήσω τους εθελοντές, που δικαίως τιμήθηκαν
την περίοδο αναφοράς για την ανιδιοτελή δουλειά και
προσφορά τους στους ηλικιωμένους. Τρεις εθελοντές
της ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑΣ έλαβαν επίσης το βραβείο Hotham
Multicultural Leading Citizens για το 2018.

Θα ήθελα να αποτίσω φόρο τιμής στους εκλιπόντες
Δια Βίου Κυβερνήτες, μέλη και ευεργέτες, και κυρίως
στους Φέδρα Αντωνίου, Ελένη Παγώνη, Ανδρέα
Θεοδούλου και Ανθούλα Ανδριανάκου που έφυγαν
από τη ζωή τους τελευταίους 12 μήνες. Θα πρέπει να
επιδοκιμάσω τις οικογένειές τους που σκέφτηκαν τη
ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑ και έσπευσαν να παροτρύνουν να γίνουν
δωρεές στη ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑ αντί στεφάνου.
Το Διοικητικό Συμβούλιο επίσης θέλει να εκφράσει
την εκτίμησή του στις Ερανικές Επιτροπές του
Templestowe, Thornbury και St Albans καθώς και στην
Ένωση Ιπποκράτης, για τη συνεχιζόμενη βοήθειά τους.
Οι ποικίλες ερανικές εκδηλώσεις που διοργάνωσαν το
προηγούμενο οικονομικό έτος ευαισθητοποίησαν την
κοινότητα και απέφεραν αναγκαία κεφάλαια για την
αποστολή μας.
Πρέπει να εγκωμιάσω τον Διευθύνοντα Σύμβουλο
της ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑΣ, Γιώργο Λεκάκη ΑΟ, τη διοικητική
του ομάδα και το αφοσιωμένο προσωπικό του για
τη σκληρή δουλειά τους με σκοπό να διασφαλίσουν
ότι πληρούνται όλα τα πρότυπα διαπίστευσης και
εκπληρώνονται οι στρατηγικοί μας στόχοι. Για
τη δέσμευσή τους, τον επαγγελματισμό και την
προθυμία τους να εκμεταλλευτούν τις ευκαιρίες
που παρουσιάστηκαν για άλλο ένα εξαιρετικό έτος,
επιτυγχάνοντας πολλά σημαντικά προγράμματα και
δημοσιονομικά αποτελέσματα.
ΤΈΛΟΣ, ΘΑ ΉΘΕΛΑ ΝΑ ΧΑΙΡΕΤΊΣΩ ΤΟ ΈΡΓΟ ΚΑΙ
ΤΗΝ ΑΦΟΣΊΩΣΗ ΤΟΥ ΔΙΟΙΚΗΤΙΚΟΎ ΣΥΜΒΟΥΛΊΟΥ
ΚΑΙ ΝΑ ΤΟΥΣ ΕΥΧΑΡΙΣΤΉΣΩ ΓΙΑ ΤΗΝ ΠΡΟΣΉΛΩΣΗ
ΚΑΙ ΕΠΑΓΓΕΛΜΑΤΙΣΜΌ ΤΟΥΣ. ΕΊΝΑΙ ΚΑΙ ΑΥΤΟΊ
ΕΘΕΛΟΝΤΈΣ ΤΗΣ ΟΡΓΆΝΩΣΗΣ ΚΑΙ ΤΟΥΣ ΕΥΧΑΡΙΣΤΏ
ΓΙΑ ΤΟ ΧΡΌΝΟ ΤΟΥΣ.
Ο ΘΗΣΑΥΡΌΣ ΦΡΟΝΤΊΔΑΣ ΘΑ ΣΥΝΕΧΊΣΕΙ.

Νεκτάριος Θώδος
Πρόεδρος

CEO‘S
REPORT
This reporting period has been about
strengthening Fronditha Care’s foundations to
ensure we will continue to service the future care
needs of the elderly of our community.
It has been a long dream of mine to see Fronditha
Care expand from its five locations, and this year
I’m happy to announce two more acquisitions for
the organisation.
With the aim of servicing the multicultural
community of Melbourne’s Mornington Peninsula,
Fronditha Care acquired a sprawling 5-acre
property in Mount Martha in late 2017.
Pending ACAR bed allocations, I envision the
property to house a 60-bed nursing home, with
ample space to encourage unique activities for our
residents like a small hobby farm or a winery and
vegetable garden.
Ushering in a new era for the organisation,
Fronditha Care also moved into its new corporate
headquarters in Mulgrave in February. Dubbed
the “Support Hub”, the building now houses all
corporate and community services staff under one
roof. It has seen more cohesion and collaboration
between departments.
The Mulgrave property also lends itself to greater
use as the ground floor remains vacant. Plans have
been approved by the City of Monash to see the
area developed into a training, community and
function centre.
A major highlight during the reporting period
is seeing the huge uptake of our Home Care
Packages and the demand for our tailored
community services.
In the past 12 months our HCP client base has
increased by almost 40 per cent. A number of
clients have also switched providers so they can
utilise Fronditha Care’s Greek speaking services.
Our residential care facilities also performed
exceptionally well with full occupancy and
continuing high standards of care. This was
confirmed by the Australian Aged Care Quality
Agency following accreditation and numerous spot
visits.
The announcement of a second Labour
Agreement in June 2018 also means we can meet
the growing demand for Greek speaking personal
care workers without compromising on service.
The new Labour Agreement will see the
organisation hire 20 Greek speaking foreign
workers annually until 2020.
Fronditha Care now employs 672 permanent and
part-time employees, an 11 per cent increase since
last financial year.
I would also like to welcome the new volunteers
who visit our community members at home, at
residential care facilities and out in the community.
Our voluntary auxiliary fundraising committees

showed particular enthusiasm over the period.
The volunteers’ selfless contributions make huge
differences to the lives of our elderly. I’m proud to
run an organisation that is so intrinsically involved in
volunteerism.
Our 3XY Radiothon 2018 appeal was also a
testament to the generosity of our community.
There was a 10 per cent increase in the number
of people pledging their support compared to the
2016 appeal.
In relation to our financial affairs, during the
reporting period, we noted a net surplus before
depreciation and amortisation expenses of
$2,273,162 and met all prudential obligations in the
financial year.
Our net asset value also exceeded $61 million.
Fronditha Care’s success and good reputation I
believe is down to our amazing, hardworking staff
and volunteers. Their commitment to our values:
Respect, Do Right, Bring Joy and Inspire Better,
drive our bounty of care ethos.
I wish to thank all the Fronditha Care staff, my
Executive team and our industrious Managers of
all our residential facilities and community service
programs. Our frontline staff however deserve the
highest commendations for their efforts this year.
Their love and care for the elderly is admirable and
I am very proud of them all.
The Board of Directors and members of Fronditha
Care should also be acknowledged for their
dedication and services to the organisation and
the support they have provided to the office of the
CEO.

I’M CONFIDENT OF THE DIRECTION IN WHICH
FRONDITHA CARE IS GOING, AND I EXPECT
THE NEXT FINANCIAL YEAR TO MIRROR THE
SUCCESSES WE HAVE SEEN OVER THE PAST
12 MONTHS.

George Lekakis AO
CEO

ΑΝΑΦΟΡΆ ΔΙΕΥΘΎΝΟΝΤΟΣ
ΣΥΜΒΟΎΛΟΥ
Κύριος στόχος του οικονομικού έτους ήταν η
ενίσχυση των θεμελίων της ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑΣ για να
εξασφαλίσουμε τη συνέχεια εξυπηρέτησης των
μελλοντικών αναγκών που θα έχουν οι ηλικιωμένοι της
κοινότητάς μας.

Ένα από τα όνειρά μου εδώ και καιρό, ήταν η
επέκταση της ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑΣ πέρα από τις τρέχουσες
πέντε τοποθεσίες, και με ιδιαίτερη χαρά μπορώ να σας
ανακοινώσω ότι αποκτήσαμε δύο ακόμη ακίνητα για
τον οργανισμό.
Με απώτερο σκοπό την υποστήριξη των
πολυπολιτισμικών κοινοτήτων στο Mornington
Peninsula, η ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑ απέκτησε στα τέλη του 2017
ένα οικόπεδο 5 στρεμμάτων στην περιοχή Mount
Martha.

Σύμφωνα με τη νέα Εργασιακή Σύμβαση, ο
οργανισμός θα προσλάβει 20 ελληνόφωνους
αλλοδαπούς φροντιστές μέχρι το 2020.
Επί του παρόντος, η ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑ απασχολεί 672
εργαζομένους πλήρης και μερικής απασχόλησης,
11 τοις εκατό παραπάνω από το προηγούμενο
οικονομικό έτος.
Θα ήθελα επίσης να καλωσορίσω τους νέους
εθελοντές που επισκέπτονται ομογενείς στα σπίτια
τους, στους οίκους ευγηρίας και στη γενικότερη
κοινότητα. Οι Ερανικές Επιτροπές μας επέδειξαν
ιδιαίτερο ενθουσιασμό τον τελευταίο χρόνο. Η
ανιδιοτελής προσφορά των εθελοντών μας, κάνει
πολύ μεγάλη διαφορά στις ζωές των ηλικιωμένων μας.
Είμαι περήφανος που διευθύνω έναν οργανισμό που
εμπλέκεται τόσο πολύ με τον εθελοντισμό.

Αν και εκκρεμεί η κατανομή κλινών από την ACAR,
προσβλέπω την κατασκευή ενός οίκου ευγηρίας
60 κλινών, με επαρκή χώρο για να ενθαρρύνουμε
τους κατοίκους μας να συμμετέχουν σε μοναδικές
δραστηριότητες, όπως τη συντήρηση μίας μικρής
φάρμας, οινοποιείου και την καλλιέργεια λαχανικών.
Βαδίζοντας σε μία νέα εποχή για τον οργανισμό, η
ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑ εγκαινίασε τα νέα κεντρικά του γραφεία
τον Φεβρουάριο στο Mulgrave. Ονομάζεται Support
Hub (Κέντρο Υποστήριξης), και φιλοξενεί τους
διοικητικούς υπαλλήλους και το προσωπικό των
κοινοτικών υπηρεσιών σε ένα όροφο. Έχει ήδη
παρατηρηθεί μεγαλύτερη συνοχή και συνεργασία
ανάμεσα στα τμήματα.

Ο Ραδιοέρανος 2018 στο 3ΧΥ, ήταν άλλη μία απόδειξη
της γενναιόδωρης κοινότητάς μας. Σε σχέση με
το 2016, σημειώθηκε αύξηση 10 τοις εκατό των
ανθρώπων που πρόσφεραν χρήματα στον οργανισμό
μας.

Το κτίριο στο Mulgrave επίσης μπορεί να αξιοποιηθεί
και με άλλους τρόπους καθώς το ισόγειο παραμένει
κενό. Το Δημαρχείο του Monash ενέκρινε τα σχέδια
για την μετατροπή του χώρου σε ένα κοινοτικό και
εκπαιδευτικό κέντρο που παράλληλα θα φιλοξενεί
εκδηλώσεις.

Η επιτυχία και η καλή φήμη της ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑΣ νομίζω
έγκειται στο καταπληκτικό και σκληρά εργαζόμενο
προσωπικό και εθελοντές μας. Η προσήλωση τους
στις αξίες μας: Σεβασμός, Κάνε το Σωστό, Φέρε Χαρά
και Ενέπνευσε για το Καλύτερο, οδηγούν το ήθος του
Θησαυρού Φροντίδας.

Μία σημαντική επιτυχία για την περίοδο αναφοράς
ήταν και η ραγδαία αύξηση του αριθμού Πακέτων
Φροντίδας για το Σπίτι που εξυπηρετούμε καθώς
και της ζήτησης για τις εξειδικευμένες κοινοτικές
υπηρεσίες μας. Κατά το οικονομικό έτος σημειώθηκε
αύξη ση σχεδόν 90 % στον αριθμό των πελατών για
τα Πακέτα Φροντίδας για το Σπίτι που προσφέρουμε.
Αρκετοί πελάτες άλλαξαν παροχέα για να
επωφεληθούν από τους ελληνόφωνους φροντιστές
της ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑΣ.

Θα ήθελα να ευχαριστήσω όλο το προσωπικό της
ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑΣ, τη Διοικητική Ομάδα μου και τους
ακούραστους Διευθυντές όλων των οίκων ευγηρίας
μας και των κοινοτικών υπηρεσιών. Ωστόσο, το
προσωπικό της «πρώτης γραμμής» αξίζει το
μεγαλύτερο έπαινο για όλη του την προσπάθεια. Η
αγάπη και η φροντίδα τους για τους ηλικιωμένους
είναι αξιοθαύμαστη.

Όλοι οι οίκοι ευγηρίας ήταν πλήρης και το επίπεδο
φροντίδας κυμάνθηκε σε πολύ υψηλά επίπεδα. Το
επίπεδο των υπηρεσιών μας μάλιστα επικροτήθηκε
και από την Αυστραλιανή Υπηρεσία για την Ποιότητα
Υπηρεσιών Τρίτης Ηλικίας (Australian Aged Care
Quality Agency) κατά τις επιθεωρήσεις και τους
πολυάριθμους απροειδοποίητους ελέγχους.
Η ανακοίνωση της δεύτερης Εργασιακής Συμφωνίας
τον Ιούνιο του 2018 σημαίνει επίσης ότι μπορούμε
να ανταποκριθούμε στις αυξανόμενες ανάγκες
για ελληνόφωνους φροντιστές, διατηρώντας την
ποιότητα των υπηρεσιών μας.

Σχετικά με τα οικονομικά μας, κατά την περίοδο
αναφοράς, πετύχαμε πλεόνασμα $2,273,162 πριν την
απόσβεση, και εκπληρώσαμε όλες τις υποχρεώσεις
μας όσον αφορά την προληπτική εποπτεία κατά το
οικονομικό έτος.
Η καθαρή αξία του ενεργητικού μας ξεπέρασε επίσης
τα $61 εκατομμύρια.

Θα πρέπει επίσης να χαιρετίσουμε το Διοικητικό
Συμβούλιο και τα μέλη της ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑΣ για την
αφοσίωσή και τις υπηρεσίες τους στον οργανισμό
και την υποστήριξη στο γραφείο του Διευθύνοντος
Συμβούλου.
ΕΊΜΑΙ ΠΕΡΉΦΑΝΟΣ ΓΙΑ ΤΗΝ ΠΟΡΕΊΑ ΠΟΥ
ΑΚΟΛΟΥΘΕΊ Η ΦΡΟΝΤΙΔΑ ΚΑΙ ΠΕΡΙΜΈΝΩ
ΤΟ ΕΠΌΜΕΝΟ ΟΙΚΟΝΟΜΙΚΌ ΈΤΟΣ ΝΑ
ΑΝΤΙΚΑΤΟΠΤΡΊΣΕΙ ΤΙΣ ΕΠΙΤΥΧΊΕΣ ΤΩΝ ΤΕΛΕΥΤΑΊΩΝ
12 ΜΗΝΏΝ.

Γιώργος Λεκάκης AO
Διευθύνων Σύμβουλος

HIGHLIGHTS
2017 - 18
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ACQUISITIONS AND
REDEVELOPMENT PROGRAM
Fronditha Care has seen unprecedented
growth in its acquisitions and capital works
projects in the 2017/18 financial year.

CLAYTON UPRADE
DELIVERY OF PRONIA & WORKS
BEGIN ON GALINI
Phase II of the Clayton redevelopment
project was completed in November
2017 with Fronditha Care’s first nursing
home PRONIA delivered to luxury 5-star
standards, and welcoming 42 new residents.
The facility contains the redeveloped Zissis
Dardalis Activity Centre, where our Social
Support Programs are held weekly for
elderly who live in the community.

14

Phase III will see the redevelopment of
GALINI, our first specialised memory support
unit. GALINI will be reborn to a 33-bed
modern and comfortable facility, catering
specifically to the needs of those with severe
dementia. Construction began in February
2018 and is due to be completed in May
2019.

FRONDITHA CARE GOES BAYSIDE
MOUNT MARTHA PROPERTY

ST ALBANS
NEW ST ALBANS THALPORI
PLANS TAKE SHAPE

Fronditha Care secured a 5.5 hectare
property along Victoria’s iconic Mornington
Peninsula in November 2017 for $2,075,000.
The area is being earmarked for a 60-bed
low rise residential aged care facility to
cater to the needs of the local ageing CALD
community. The property also currently
includes an 1860’s Victorian stone cottage.

Further to the allocation of 30 CALD
dementia beds to Fronditha Care from
the federal government in 2017, in 2018
Fronditha Care submitted architectural
plans to Brimbank City Council for the
development of a 92-bed residential
aged care facility. The facility’s 30-bed
memory support unit has been designed in
consultation with Dementia Australia.
The design concept of the new THALPORI
is based on a grand English manor style;
construction is set to begin at the end of
2018.

Proposed design concept for the St Albans
Redevelopment
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LOWER TEMPLESTOWE
STORGI FACELIFT
Lower Templestowe’s 60-bed STORGI facility
underwent a refurbishment in 2017 to see
the warm, homely environment our residents
know and love continue for years to come.
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It was highlighted by new flooring and
colour scheme and plush furnishings in all
residential lounge spaces. By all accounts,
the new interior has been welcomed by all
the residents and their families.

SUPPORT HUB
CARE NEEDS SUPPORT
Phase III of the Clayton capital works
program saw the demolition of Fronditha
Care’s head office to make way for the
redevelopment and expansion of the GALINI
memory support unit.
A two-level building in Mulgrave was acquired
in August 2017 for $3 million; after a
refurbishment Fronditha Care’s aptly named
Support Hub opened in February 2018
with Executive Management, Finance, HR,

Proposed facade

Community Services, Quality Management
and Public Affairs all working collaboratively
to support our front line staff.
Further development will see the lower level
of the building used as facilities for training
and function centres and meeting spaces for
use by the community.

Existing facade
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ACCREDITATION AND
SUPPORT VISITS
Significant changes in the federal
government’s accreditation process and
policies didn’t impede Fronditha Care’s
stellar audit results during the financial year.
In December 2017, the federal government
announced it will no longer provide notice to
organisations regarding when accreditation
audits will be scheduled by the Australian
Aged Care Quality Agency (AACQA).

LOWER TEMPLESTOWE
ACCREDITATION SUCCESS
Lower Templestowe’s STORGI facility blew
away auditors from the AACQA, passing its
three-year accreditation with flying colours
in February 2018.
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Fronditha Care operates as if an audit
will happen every day, so while it might
not mean a big change for the daily
operations of the organisation, it will ensure
transparency in the aged care sector
as facilities strive to meet the required
standards and outcomes continuously.

“It was an accumulation of all
the hard work that has been
put in, to keep improving,
that really showcased what a
wonderful home this is.”
JIM SCANTSONIHAS
General Manager of Operations and Infrastructure
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SUPPORT VISITS AND
ACCREDITATION EXTENSIONS
Our St Albans and Thornbury facilities both
received 12-month extensions to their three
year accreditation period, after AACQA
auditors were left impressed after their
unannounced visits.
The Thornbury facility received plenty of
positive feedback from the auditors and our
residents during its October 2017 support
visit. The focus of the visit was on behaviour
management, living environment, continuous
improvement, OH&S and infection control. As
a result of the visit and its excellent record,
the facility’s accreditation was extended
from 2018 till 2019.
The St. Albans THALPORI facility followed
in January 2018, with auditors reviewing
outcomes in human resources, clinical care
and leisure & lifestyle. Accreditation was also
extended till 2019.
Lower Templestowe’s STORGI facility had
a support visit in November 2017 and was
assessed on continuous improvement,
information systems and clinical care. The
assessors were impressed with the quality
of food, the staff job satisfaction rates and
the continuous training on offer. They found
the residents were happy and well cared for.
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STEYI and the new PRONIA wing of our
residential care facility in Clayton received
a support visit in February 2018 where
clinical care, catering, cleaning and laundry
were assessed. All outcomes were met
with overall very positive feedback from the
residents and their families.
Auditors also commented on the close
interaction, kindness and care of staff and
the beautiful outdoor areas for the residents
which add to the overall atmosphere.
The HIPPOCRATES (Newcastle) staff’s work
ethic and their commitment to our cherished
residents was on show at their February
2018 support visit. The assessors reviewed
the facility’s clinical care. All outcomes
were met with excellent feedback from the
residents and their families.

“THE AUDITORS OBSERVED THAT
STAFF WERE CARING, ATTENTIVE
AND RESPONSIVE TO THE NEEDS
OF THE RESIDENTS”
- Jim Scantsonihas, General
Manager of Operations and
Infrastructure
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LABOUR AGREEMENT
A GREAT RESULT FOR
FRONDITHA CARE
A ground-breaking second Fronditha Care
Labour Agreement was signed in June
2018 with the Department of Immigration
and Border Protection and will see up to 60
Greek speakers hired over three years to
help fill bilingual staffing demands in aged
care.
Greek language and cultural competence is
a crucial factor in the delivery of Fronditha
Care’s culturally appropriate model of care.
It will mean our residents and clients can
continue to benefit from having staff that
speak their language and who understand
their cultural sensitivities. It also creates a
wonderful rapport, where the carers don’t
just support their needs, but become friends
and confidants.
There has already been a strong uptake
in the new labour agreement as the word
gets out, while those on the first labour
agreement will now have the opportunity to
apply for permanent residency.
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It has been a positive experience for Labour
Agreement worker Dimitra Xexaki, who
says she gets a lot of strength from her
workplace.
“For me, because I came to Australia
alone, working at Fronditha Care at a
Greek organisation makes me feel like I’m
surrounded by family and it helps me feel
welcome,” she said.
Colleague Jenny, 23, tried her hand at aged
care as she was looking to pursue a career
in helping people and now believes she has
found her new calling.
“Spending time with the elderly residents
and working alongside them, I realised it was
a turning point for my future career,” she
said.

“I UNDERSTOOD THAT I WANTED
TO FOLLOW THIS PATH AND TO
EVENTUALLY ENROL IN NURSING.”
- Jenny, P.C.A.

HOME CARE PACKAGES

NEW GOVERNMENT FRAMEWORK INCREASES FRONDITHA
CARE’S SERVICE DELIVERY
One of the shining achievements of
Fronditha Care over the past 12 months has
been the huge uptake and expansion of our
Community Services.

introduced allowing people already approved
for a Home Care Package but still on the
national waiting list to access assistance
from qualified Greek speaking workers.

There has been a 90% increase in clientele
since the deregulation of Home Care
Packges in 2017.

Our four Social Support Groups across
metropolitan Melbourne are continually in
demand, and our phone lines ring every day
with new enquiries about our services in the
community.

The organisation has also invested heavily
in training and hiring new staff, including
personal care workers, case workers, and
care consultants. The Community Services
team has been relocated from across
Melbourne to the organisation’s new Support
Hub at Mulgrave.

Heleni Bagiartakis, Executive Manager for
Community Services and Planning and
her team have done a magnificent job in
delivering so many additional services.

Volunteers have also played a special part in
what we can offer our community services
clients, and have enriched the program.
The Domestic Assistance Program was
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FUNDRAISING
RADIOTHON 2018
The 3XY Fronditha Care 2018 Radiothon
was a two-day marathon event, raising much
needed funds for the redevelopment of the
memory support units at Clayton and St
Albans.
More than $137,000 was pledged in total
over the campaign and during the Radiothon
weekend on March 17-18.
This campaign saw a 10 per cent increase
in the number of pledges from the
community, with mostly $50 and $100
individual donations adding to the final total.
Community organisations gave generously
as did many businesses and ongoing major
donors.
Special mention must be made of the
generosity of the Ithacan Philanthropic
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Society for their $15,000 donation; Fronditha
Care’s residents thank you.
It was also the first time the live fundraising
event was hosted at our new Support Hub
premises, where volunteers managed the
call centre and stakeholders partook in the
broadcast. Satellite sites also complemented
the drive, with the Clayton and Thornbury
facilities open to accept donations and a
team stationed at Nikos Cakes in Oakleigh.
Our St Albans Auxiliary also chipped in,
hosting two Sausage Sizzle BBQs, sponsored
by Tasman Meats.
Thank you to all who participated, including
those who participated in the broadcast,
sent audio and written messages of support
and answered phone calls.

SPECIAL THANKS TO:
3XY
Aged Care Minister The Honourable Ken
Wyatt AM MP
The Ambassador of Greece in Australia Her
Excellency Ekaterini Xagorari
The High Commissioner of Cyprus
in Australia Her Excellency Martha
Mavromamatis
The Consul General of Greece in Melbourne
Dimitris Mihalopoulos
Premier of Victoria Daniel Andrews
Maria Vamvakinou MP
Julia Banks MP
Jenny Mikakos MP
Steve Dimopoulos MP
ACSA
LASA
MAJOR DONORS ($1,000 AND ABOVE):
Ithacan Philanthropic Society
Milemaker (Nikos Andrianakos)
AA Holdings (Andreas Andrianopoulos)
Kapiris Bros

Syllogos Geronton Agiou Dimitrou
D&A Pulitano Constructions P/L
NAB
Lemnian Community of Victoria
The O’Neill Group
Midas Insurance
Bank of Sydney
Melbourne Memorials
Philanthorpic Brotherhood Agios Dimitrios
Zarakos Lakonias
Stavrias Architecture
Trigon Constructions
Gerry’s Pittes
Cosmopolitan Builders and Plumbers
Jacob Fronistas OAM
Philanthropic Brotherhood Argos Orestikon
& Victorian Regions (Victorian Association of
Argos Orestikon and District)
Jim Kalodimos
Maria Farrugia
Acrylic Sheet Form
Gregorious Lodge
Salvesen Investments (D&S Floratos)
John Bellesis

$137,000

Total amount
pledged towards
the Radiothon 2018

AUXILIARY SUCCESS
Fronditha Care’s Auxiliary Fundraising
Committees are made up of dedicated
volunteers whose core activity is raising
funds for the care of our cherished residents.
The reporting period saw a number
of successful events organised by our
Templestowe, Thornbury and St Albans
Auxiliary Committees.

The Auxiliaries are valued partners of
Fronditha Care who volunteer their time
and help build strong relationships with the
community.

TEMPLESTOWE
Hosting their annual Christmas luncheon
fundraiser at the St Haralambos Church
Hall in Templestowe on 16 November 2017,
the Templestowe Auxiliary raised more than
$38,000 in the reporting period.
The event has become an institution in our
Christmas calendar of events and attracts
over 300 attendees year after year.
Ongoing support from the community saw
close to $15,000 raised from the raffle prizes
and silent auction items. Thank you to all who
have given generously.
Funds raised went towards the purchase of
new furniture for our residents at STORGI,
Templestowe.
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$38,000
RAISED BY THE
TEMPLESTOWE
AUXILIARY IN THE
2017-18 PERIOD

THORNBURY
The Thornbury Auxiliary hosted a very
entertaining tavern night fundraiser at
Yiannis Tavern in Kew on 2 March 2018.
More than 200 people attended the event,
with many generous donations and an
eventful auction seeing more than $12,500
raised for the needs of the elderly residents
at our Thornbury aged care facility. Funds
raised have been earmarked for an outdoor
entertainment area for residents of our
Thornbury facility.

$12,500
RAISED BY THE
THORNBURY
AUXILIARY IN THE
2017-18 PERIOD

ST ALBANS
In partnership with the renowned Anthea
Crawford fashion home, the St Albans
Auxiliary put on a stunning spring fashion
show fundraiser in October 2017 at White
Rose Receptions in Northcote. The event
saw more than $10,400 raised. During the
Radiothon campaign, the committee also
conducted two sausage sizzles, which raised
more than $800.

$11,275

RAISED BY THE
ST ALBANS
AUXILIARY IN THE
2017-18 PERIOD

Funds raised are earmarked for the new
memory support unit of THALPORI’s
redevelopment.
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HIPPOCRATES,
NEWCASTLE NSW
MASQUERADE FUNDRAISER
The Hippocrates Australian Greek Aged
Persons Association hosted a successful
fundraising event for our 66-bed residential
facility in Newcastle, coinciding with the
Greek cultural celebration of the “Apokries”,
or “Carnivale”. With the support of the local
community they raised over $5,300. The
night was very enjoyable and full of fun.
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MAJOR DONATIONS AND
BEQUESTS
AHEPA VICTORIA - $50,000
The Australasian Hellenic Educational
Progressive Association (AHEPA) Victorian
arm organised two fundraising events, a
BBQ lunch in Rye at the home of Con Panos
and a Gala Ball in 2018, to honour a $50,000
pledge made to the residents of our Clayton
residential aged care facility. The $50,000
donation made in March 2018 went towards
the purchase of a brand new 22-seater,
wheelchair-friendly bus to take our residents
on regular outings.

ANONYMOUS - $20,000

BEQUESTS

We are humbled by this generous
anonymous donation.

The Estate of N. Ventouras graciously
donated $50,000 towards our 120-bed
Thornbury residential aged care facility.
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FUNDRAISING
SNAPSHOT

$140,542

$405,490
TOTAL AMOUNT
RAISED IN THE
2017-18 REPORTING
PERIOD

General donations in the
2017-18 reporting period

$123,861
$61,775

Radiothon pledges
honoured in the
2017-18 reporting
period

Raised by Auxiliaries in
the 2017-18 reporting
period

$50,000

Bequests received in the
2017-18 reporting period

$29,336

Memorial donations made
in the 2017-18 reporting
period

MEMORIAL
DONATIONS
Fronditha Care receives donations in memory of loved ones and in
lieu of flowers at funeral services. During the reporting period, these
donations were mostly requested by families of residents and clients,
and other supporters of Fronditha Care, with a total of $29,336
raised.
We express our gratitude to all the families that have nominated
Fronditha Care as their charity of choice and we extend our sincere
condolences to them for their loss.
Donations received In Memory of the late:
Niki Petropoulos
Panagiota Diamantopoulos
Stavroula Kanellakos
Panagiota Xenofontos
Andrew Theodoulou
Harilaos Iosifidis
Julie Chali
Frosyni Bountroukas

Antonia Stathakopoulos
Alex Dimou
Maria Cotsonis
Ourania Panagiotou
Freda Antoniou
Helen Pagonis
Nick Bitzas
Theodore Kekakis

Fronditha Care also extends its appreciation to the funeral
companies that have supported our cause in the reporting period,
including: Joannides Funerals, Tobin Brothers Funerals, Orthodox
Funerals, Agape Funerals, Andrews Funeral Care, Australian
Orthodox Funerals, Classic Memorials, Giovanni Verga Memorials,
Greek Funeral Services, John Stonemart Pty Ltd, Le Pine Funerals,
Morakis Funerals, Victoria Funerals.
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DONATE TO A CAUSE
THAT DESERVES YOUR
SUPPORT.
I would like to donate the amount $ ____________________________________________
Amount in words _____________________________________________________________
Name / Organisation __________________________________________________________
Address _____________________________________________________________________
State _______

Postcode ________

Phone No. ___________________________

Email ________________________________________________________________________
Method of Payment:
Cash
Cheque
Direct Debit: Delphi Bank - BSB: 941 304 / Account No.: 203372010
Credit Card:
Visa		Mastercard
Credit Card Number:

Name on card ____________________________ Expiry ___ /___ CCV ___ ___ ___
Signature _________________________________
Cut and post this donation slip to:
16 Anzed Court, Mulgrave VIC 3170
or scan and email to comms.pr@fronditha.org
or call us to donate on (03) 9552 4100
Thank you for your support.
frondithacare.org.au

ANNA MATTHEWS OAM
SCHOLARSHIP LAUNCH
In 2017 Fronditha Care proudly announced
the Anna Matthews OAM Scholarship Award
for post-graduate research students.
The scholarship was introduced to
encourage and assist research that
contributes to the wellbeing and care
of ageing adults from a culturally and
linguistically diverse background.
The scholarship will provide financial support
up to a value of $20,000 per annum
and aims to help cover the high costs of
conducting qualitative and quantitative
research.
In June 2018, the Research & Community
Engagement Committee decided to give the
first award of $10,000 to Mathew Staios, a
Monash University PhD student creating and
adapting dementia diagnostic tests for CALD
elderly.

Fronditha Care Director, Mrs E. Cargakis
(daughter of the late Anna Matthews OAM)
presenting the cheque to Mr M. Staios with
Mrs. Z. Angeli, Executive Manager of Public
Affairs

The late Anna Matthews OAM
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TRIBUTES
FREDA ANTONIOU
LIFE GOVERNOR
Freda and her husband, Bill were long-time
supporters of Fronditha Care. They were
involved in fundraising and launched the first
appeal for funds to build our first memory
support unit GALINI, hosting a function at
their property. Their generosity was also
highlighted at a Radiothon appeal where
Bill Antoniou rang up to double the money
received at the end of the appeal. Freda
also volunteered alongside Anna Matthews
OAM and Anna Georgoussis OAM at Clayton
and made a significant contribution to
the Greek Community of Cranbourne and
Dandenong.
Fronditha Care was nominated to collect
donations at her funeral and more than
$1,700 was raised.

HELEN PAGONIS
LIFE GOVERNOR
Helen was heavily involved in the first
Fronditha Care Auxiliary in 1978 and was a
part of the first Visitors Scheme where she
and a group of ladies would go to nursing
homes and hospitals and visit elderly Greek
Australians in care. A tireless volunteer for
more than 20 years and a very sweet lady,
her work is supported by her daughter Dr.
Leigh Pagonis who is part of the Fronditha
Care family and also a Life Governor.
Fronditha Care was nominated to collect
donations at her funeral and more than
$2,600 was raised.
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ANDREW THEODOULOU
LIFE GOVERNOR
Andrew was a very active Fronditha Care
board member and a volunteer at the
Clayton facility for three decades. When
asked what drew him to helping Fronditha
Care, he would always say “It’s my passion to
help others”.
He was also a founding member of the
Clayton Greek Community and a Councillor
at Oakleigh City Council, helping Fronditha
Care secure a $100,000 grant for the
purchase of the land in Clayton South.
Fronditha Care was nominated to collect
donations at his funeral and more than
$1,350 was raised.

ANTHOULA ANDRIANAKOS
Anthoula was at heart a philanthropist and
readily supported the Greek community and
our elderly. She and her family participated
in numerous Radiothons for the organisation
and multiple fundraisers, and have shown
particular interest in the Lower Templestowe
facility and its residents. Recently, the
Andrianakos family donated towards the
new bus in STORGI to ensure our residents
are able to go on regular outings, our
Radiothon 2018 and many other events. We
thank the family for its generosity and we
extend our sincere condolences.
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RESIDENTIAL
CARE SERVICES
406
TOTALNUMBER OF
CURRENT BEDS IN
VICTORIA & NSW

Fronditha Care services four locations in
Melbourne’s major metropolitan areas
(Clayton South, Lower Templestowe,
Thornbury and St. Albans) and one location
in regional NSW (Newcastle).
Our staff work closely with each resident,
their family/representative and health
practitioners to ensure residents are
receiving the best possible culturally
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appropriate care and support and are
engaging in lifestyle activities that celebrate
their heritage.
We want them to feel in control of their lives
and promote physical, emotional and mental
wellbeing within a calm, comfortable, secure
and active environment.
Above all, we never forget it’s their home.

CLAYTON

100 BEDS

STEYI - PRONIA - GALINI
Fronditha Care at Clayton saw a major
milestone realised when the new PRONIA
(the organisation’s first ever facility,
originally built in 1982) reopened its doors to
residents in November 2017.
The new 42 bed facility boasts luxury
standards, purpose-built activity areas and
Roman-style outdoor spaces.
The GALINI memory support unit is next.
The old building was demolished in February
2018 with completion of the contemporary
memory support unit expected in May 2019.
The introduction of the discovery room in
our current memory support unit was also a
welcome addition.
The facility received very positive feedback
and validation of its ongoing high standards
after an AACQA spot visit in January 2018.
Auditors looked into clinical care and human
resources, which prepared staff for the
impending 3-year accreditation in July 2018.

The lifestyle and activity program was also
jam packed with new and interesting events.
Music and dancing were focal activities:
our staff belly dancing group performed
regularly; our resident choir completed
a Christmas carol tour and partook in a
singalong at the Italian Museum; the staff
and resident rembetiko group is also growing
strong.
Crafts and traditional theatre activities
included traditional Greek costume making,
creating homewares from recyclables and
the creation of the karakiozi puppet mobile
theatre with its regular performances.
“I WOULD LIKE TO THANK OUR AMAZING
STAFF WHO CONTINUALLY SHOW
UNWAVERING LOVE AND CARE FOR OUR
RESIDENTS, AND LOOK FORWARD TO
SEEING THE COMPLETION OF THE FINAL
STAGE OF THE CLAYTON REDEVELOPMENT
IN 2019.”
- Jayson Vinod, Manager Residential Care
of Fronditha Care Clayton
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THORNBURY
120 BEDS
ANESI - DAREBIN - MERRI - GRANDVIEW
Originally a small 30-bed facility, ANESI now
successfully operates as a lively 120 bed
facility, catering to the needs of our Greek
elders.
This past year saw ANESI achieve a huge
milestone in celebrating its 20th birthday.
Many of the staff during ANESI’s early years
in the late 90s joined to celebrate at the
20th Anniversary party in October 2018. A
blessing from the same priest who opened
the facility 20 years ago was a touching
tribute, but the uplifting performance of
Elvis was a showstopper. Residents were
seen tapping their toes and jiving to the
familiar music, while a few residents and
staff members got singled out for a personal
serenade.
Our Thornbury facility finalised plans for key
refurbishments. The relocation of community
services staff to the new Support Hub in
Mulgrave, made way for plans to transform
their work area into a space for hot desks,
a new welcoming staff room and functional
training facilities. Plans to revamp the
reception and office space on the lower level
were also completed.
Approval was also received for the extension
of the facility’s kitchen from Darebin City
Council.
Plans have been submitted to council for a
pergola & BBQ area for residents and their
families to enjoy in our outdoor area. We
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thank the Thornbury Auxiliary for organising
various fundraisers over 3 years to make
this outdoor entertainment space a reality.
An unannounced support visit in October
2017 by the AACQA acknowledged the
Thornbury facility’s ongoing provision of high
standards of care and compliance. The
assessors reviewed behaviour management,
living environment, continuous improvement,
OH&S and infection control. Highly positive
feedback from the auditors and our
residents resulted in a further 9 month
extension to the 3 year period – a fantastic
result.
Over the reporting period efforts were
made to improve the living environment
for residents and the working environment
for staff. Celebrations were high on the list
for special events, name days, culturally
significant days and resident birthdays. The
wish list program and bus outings four times
a week kept residents connected to their
community.
“WE THANK OUR VOLUNTEERS WHO
DEDICATE THEIR TIME TO OUR RESIDENTS
HERE. OUR STAFF DO A WONDERFUL
JOB IN LOOKING AFTER, CARING FOR AND
ENTERTAINING OUR RESIDENTS AND I
THANK ALL FOR THEIR COMMITMENT TO
FRONDITHA CARE.”
- Renee Bognar, Manager Residential Care
of Fronditha Care Thornbury

LOWER
TEMPLESTOWE

60 BEDS

STORGI
The July 2017 to June 2018 period was
a triumphant year for STORGI with staff
receiving accolades, the achievement of
successful accreditation results and an
interior refurbishment.
An extraordinary acknowledgment of the
work of personal carer Tut Nyuon was
given when he received the Outstanding
Contribution Award at the 2018 Fronditha
Care Staff Awards. We are very proud of Tut
and the hurdles he has overcome in his life
to achieve such wonderful recognition and
appreciation from colleagues, our residents
and their relatives.
The AACQA put STORGI under the
microscope this year. A support visit in
November 2017 assessed continuous
improvement, information systems and
clinical care. The assessors were impressed
with the quality of food, the staff job
satisfaction rates and the continuous
training on offer.
The exceptional work of the staff was
credited for the 3 year accreditation
achieved after a thorough audit by the
AACQA in February 2018. All 44 outcomes
were met and the facility received highly
positive comments from the auditors in
response to commendation from residents
and their families.

STORGI’s kitchen staff led by Maria Kaitsatzis
achieved a 5 Star rating from Manningham
City Council for compliance and excellence.
The facility received a welcome interior
facelift with new furnishings, floorings and
fresh paint. The Templestowe Auxiliary
generously contributed the proceeds of
their November 2017 Christmas fundraiser
towards this end.
The lifestyle staff with our industrious
volunteers had a rich array of activities for
the residents throughout the year, both
traditional and fun. The re-enactment of the
British Royal wedding by staff and residents
was much talked about. The resident and
family Christmas party was a particular
success as were various theatrical and
musical performances. The new bus was
seen throughout the Melbourne’s east, taking
our residents on regular weekly outings.
“STORGI IS SUCH A SPECIAL PLACE FOR
OUR RESIDENTS AND THE ‘BOUNTY OF
CARE’ DISPLAYED BY ALL WHO WALK
THROUGH OUR DOORS IS TRULY AMAZING.”
- Angela Cox, Manager of Residential Care of
Fronditha Care Lower Templestowe
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ST ALBANS
60 BEDS
THALPORI
The submission of plans to Brimbank City
Council in 2018 for a state-of-the-art
92-bed facility on the vacant land next to
THALPORI, has been a huge morale booster
for the Fronditha Care team in St. Albans.
It will see 30 extra beds added to our
current capacity and an impressive upgrade
to accommodation standards in St. Albans
that will offer our beloved residents the
resort style accommodation they deserve.
A 30-bed memory support unit will care
for the elderly with severe dementia while
its ‘grand English manor’ architectural
concept will be unique for Fronditha Care.
Construction is expected to commence in
2018.
Our ongoing high standards of care were
acknowledged by the AACQA during a
January 2018 support visit, where auditors
awarded THALPORI with a 12-month
extension to its accreditation period after
assessing human resources, clinical care and
leisure & lifestyle.
The reporting period’s social calendar was
buzzing with activity.
The St Albans Auxiliary hosted a successful
fashion parade fundraiser in October 2017
which raised over $10,000 for the care of our
residents.
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Our signature Yiayia and Pappou Day
brought all of our families together in a
festive and intergenerational celebration
while residents still remember the comedic
stylings of our staff performing plays based
on ancient Greek history and comedic skits.
“Symbethera” continues to ring out down the
THALPORI halls.
The cultural diversity program saw staff
from the Philippines show off their heritage
through cultural dance, dress and food for
residents and staff, while staff from the
Cook Islands, Samoa, and New Zealand
combined to show what life in the South
Pacific is like.
“IT HAS BEEN A HUGELY SUCCESSFUL
YEAR AND MY HOPE IS THAT I CAN SOON
BE UPDATING YOU FROM OUR NEW
THALPORI.”
- Sue Donaldson, Manager Residential Care
of Fronditha Care St Albans

NEWCASTLE, NSW
66 BEDS
HIPPOCRATES
The reporting period saw many exciting
activities and initiatives take root as new
staff and volunteers joined the Newcastle
care team.
The recruitment of a new Clinical Care
Coordinator facilitated the introduction of
innovative care practices to the facility. A
support visit from the AACQA in February
2018 put clinical care under the microscope.
All outcomes were met with excellent
feedback from the residents and their
families, with the assessors commenting
on the staff’s strong work ethic and
commitment to residents.
Our new partnership with the Hunter
Volunteers Association has enriched the
lives of our residents; weekly bus trips were
reintroduced thanks to a volunteer driver,
while other volunteers encouraged our green
thumb residents to get active and engaged
outdoors.
Our gardens were given a facelift with
support from horticulture students from
Novaskill; the front of the facility has been
transformed into a charming rose garden
that provides a pleasant vista for the

residents from upstairs. A comfortable
outdoor area for staff to enjoy during their
breaks was also built.
Food preparation is important to us at
Fronditha Care and we are proud of the
‘A’ Food Safety rating we received from
the NSW Food Authority, after a stringent
audit in February 2018. To the residents’
delight, Anna Marendy, the President of the
Hippocrates Australian Greek Aged Persons
Association (HAGAPA) passed some of
her secret Greek recipes to Chef Amrinder
Singh; the Association and our chef joined
forces to put on a wonderful Masquerade
Party fundraiser in February that raised over
$5,300 for our residents.
“OUR FACILITY HAS CONTINUED TO
BE A WONDERFULLY MULTICULTURAL
COMMUNITY, WITH A WIDE
REPRESENTATION FROM DIFFERENT
ETHNIC GROUPS THAT ENRICH THE LIVES
OF ALL OF OUR COMMUNITY.”
- Judith Cornish, Manager Residential Care
of Fronditha Care Newcastle (Mayfield)
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QUALITY MANAGEMENT
HOSPITALITY SERVICES
During the reporting period, our Hospitality
Services Manager, Peter Thiveos, directed
his efforts to the transition to new quality
standards and enriching the consumer
experience for our residents.

A focus on enhancing the dining experience
concentrated our efforts on creating the
right environment and setting for mealtimes,
the presentation of meals and our food
service. Our seasonal menus, approved by
Leading Nutrition dieticians, received positive
feedback from our residents and their family
members who are encouraged to complete
a survey every year.
The food safety program was reviewed and
updated. Successful external Food Safety

CLINICAL CARE
In November 2017, Kathy Devitt joined
Fronditha Care as a Quality Advisor in our
residential care division. Her decades of
experience in the CALD ageing sector have
proved invaluable. Kathy has worked closely
with our managers, clinical care coordinators
and front line staff in residential services,
to ensure the delivery of our model of care
consistently meets the Expected Outcomes
of the 4 Standards set out in the Quality of
Care Principles (2014) of the current quality
framework set by the federal government.
Our responsive feedback mechanism and
mature auditing processes have enabled
us to review, monitor and assess our
performance against the set standards and
generate continuous improvement.
Kathy successfully piloted a Falls Prevention
Program at our HIPPOCRATES facility in
Newcastle, NSW over the reporting period;
the program is set be implemented across
our Victorian facilities by the end of 2018.
Other key programs, policies and procedures
have been introduced during the reporting
period including our LGBTQI Inclusive
Practice Policy.
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Audits at each residential facility have
provided confirmation that our hospitality
services meet all standards. Lower
Templestowe’s kitchen received a 5-star
quality certificate from Manningham City
Council, while our Newcastle facility received
an “A” food rating with 100 per cent accuracy
from the NSW Food Authority.
Kronos rostering software was successfully
implemented and monitoring records have
been reviewed. Continuous support and
quality checks of ancillary services (cleaning,
laundry and maintenance) at each facility
ensured consistency in standards of service
delivery.

OUTCOMES

All our residential care facilities
support
underwent at least one unannounced
visit during 2017-2018 financial
year, with two facilities (Thornbury
and St. Albans) receiving
significant extensions to their
accreditation. Templestowe received
reaccreditation for another three
years.
The individual assessment
reports during support visits and
accreditation audits have been
very positive, with great results
in particular relating to consumer
experience and satisfaction. Our
residents’ positive feedback to the
AACQA’s assessors speaks volumes
about the hard work and dedication
of our wonderful staff and the
managers who lead them.

OUR FOOD
The food we serve our residents is based on
the nutritious and delicious Mediterranean
diet.
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COMMUNTY
SERVICES

Fronditha Care’s Community Services
Department has seen a huge uptake
in services and enquiries ever since the
deregulation of Home Care Packages.
This reporting period was highlighted by a
dramatic increase in services and enquiries
for Fronditha Care’s community services.
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90%
GROWTH IN HOME
CARE PACKAGE
CLIENTELE IN THE
2017-2018 REPORTING
PERIOD

Fronditha Care now services more clients
at home and in the community than ever
before through Home Care Packages,
domestic assistance, volunteer and respite
services and social support groups.
Our service provision is centred on active
ageing and improving connections and
regular participation in the community.

HOME CARE PACKAGES
Over the last financial year Fronditha Care
had the privilege of supporting an additional
144 people through its Home Care Packages.
This equates to a growth of more than 90
per cent from the previous regime.
The need within the Greek community to be
supported to remain at home is increasing
and Fronditha Care has expanded its
Community Services department to reflect
that.
We have secured a second Labour
Agreement to welcome more Greek
speaking staff, invested in more staff
training, improved technology, information
sharing and most importantly client
engagement. We always seek feedback and
engage our clients to make sure they have
a responsive and flexible service for their
needs.
Fronditha Care is incredibly proud of the
flexible and dynamic culture it has built within
its community care team and our reputation
for supporting people in their home and

in the community is reflected through the
increasing number of people wishing to be
supported by Fronditha Care.
Fronditha Care has also played a large role
in various home care policy and advocacy
matters in all forms of government that has
impacted the CALD communities of Victoria.
Our involvement contributed directly to
some of the improvements to My Aged
Care and access to services for people
from culturally and linguistically diverse
backgrounds.

“IN THIS FREE-MARKET ERA OF
‘CONSUMER CHOICE’ THE VOICE OF
PEOPLE IN THE GREEK COMMUNITY
HAS BEEN ONE OF RESOUNDING
SUPPORT AND TRUST IN FRONDITHA
CARE TO ADMINISTER THEIR HOME
CARE PACKAGE”
- Heleni Bagiartakis, Executive Manager
for Community Services and Planning
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“75 per cent of our
new clients have come
to us by word - of mouth”
Heleni Bagiartakis
Executive Manager for Community Services
and Planning

SOCIAL SUPPORT GROUPS
The four Social Support Groups are a
powerful source of physical, emotional
and social expression for our elderly who
might otherwise be isolated. Our elderly
participants forget their aches, pains and
daily routines as they partake in a rich
variety of exercise programs, art and craft
creations, outings to the beach, a park or a
café and much more.

The groups also provide invaluable respite
for their carers who often have to juggle
their own family demands as well as caring
for their loved one.
Our highlight this year has been the
move in November 2017 for the Clayton
and surrounds groups which run on
Tuesdays and Wednesdays, to our new
and dedicated activities venue, the Zissis
Dardalis Activity Centre in Clayton.

LOCATIONS
BOX HILL

CLAYTON
KNOX
CLAYTON

CLAYTON

PATTERSON
LAKES

BOX HILL
KNOX
PATTERSON LAKES

HOST HOME PROGRAM
This unique respite program, formed from
a partnership between Alfred Health and
Fronditha Care, has celebrated its 13th
year. It continues to provide invaluable
respite for carers of elders with early
stages of dementia or cognitive changes.
The group is run out of an ordinary
home in Melbourne and aims to provide
a familiar environment away from home
while giving the participants’ carers a welldeserved break.

13

YEARS CELEBRATED
OF THE UNIQUE
FRONDITHA CARE
HOST HOME PROGRAM

Anastasia Hatzisalata has hosted the
program very successfully, opening her
home on Thursdays to a group of 5 to 6
people and with the support of personal
support workers. Activities include exercise
programs, cooking, walks, outings, singing
and dancing, craft making and reminiscing.
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ACCESS & SUPPORT
The Access and Support program provides
short term, episodic support to people
entering the aged care system for the
first time. Our experienced, bilingual
social workers help people over 65 years
of age learn about and access support
services, to enable them to remain living as
independently as possible.
It works by understanding a person’s current
social, physical and emotional situation so
referrals are appropriate and beneficial to
the client.

During the reporting period, our Access
and Support program was inundated with
calls since the deregulation of Home Care
in February 2017, highlighting the very real
need for expert advocacy on behalf of
vulnerable elders with limited or no English
language or computer literacy skills.
This year, hundreds of people who didn’t
know where to begin have been linked to
different support groups, services and
referred to My Aged Care for a home
assessment through the program.

Some of our work includes: connecting
people with an interest group, help with meal
preparation or delivered meals, home help,
community health services or personal care.

DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE
Fronditha Care was successful in obtaining
Commonwealth Home Support Funds to
deliver Domestic Assistance to people over
the age of 65 from a non-English speaking
background, living in the Northern and
Western metropolitan regions of Melbourne.
This has been an exciting expansion for
Fronditha Care’s Community Services
division into an area of service delivery that
was previously exclusively provided by local
councils.

1,000

HOURS OF
ASSISTANCE TO
ELIGIBLE ELDERS IN
THE COMMUNITY

BROKERAGE
Our Brokerage Services Program continues
to be in high demand. With the deregulation
of Home Care Packages, all providers have
sought to hold on to their existing package
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clients including their Greek speaking elders.
Managing these relationships has been a
monumental effort and our Services and
Administration team are to be commended.

VOLUNTEER PROGRAM
Fronditha Care’s volunteer program is
sustained by the unwavering enthusiasm,
compassion and selfnessness of our
volunteers. They support Fronditha Care
in delivering its mission to improve people’s
quality of life and maintaining its reputation
in the community. Our volunteers visit the
elderly in residential aged care facilities,
visit people in their homes, fundraise for our
cause and sit on our Board of Directors.
This year our residential based volunteer
program provided 2989 hours of volunteer
companionship.

Our elders tell us that the volunteers who
visit make a huge difference in their lives;
volunteers are able to sit down and have
a coffee and a chat, talk about their lives
and what’s happening in the world. The
volunteers tell us that they feel they are
going to see a friend, rather than a “client”.
In addition to volunteers visiting Fronditha
Care residential aged care facilities they
also provided 201 volunteer hours at 12
non Fronditha Care aged care homes in
which Greek elders are residing and would
otherwise be completely isolated.

SKILLED VOLUNTEERS
PROGRAM
Fronditha Care’s home care based volunteer
program experienced rapid growth with
an increase in referrals and home visits by
volunteers.

Fronditha Care participated in the City of
Boroondara’s Volunteer Resource Centre
Skilled Volunteers program to design an
online training platform for volunteers.

This year we provided 897 volunteer hours
to 57 people living in their own home and are
either waiting for or have received a home
care package.

23%

VOLUNTEER HOURS
TO PEOPLE LIVING IN
THEIR OWN HOME

3,886
TOTAL VOLUNTEER
HOURS OF
COMPANIONSHIP
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77%
VOLUNTEER HOURS
TO ELDERS IN
RESIDENTIAL CARE

“The volunteers tell us

that they feel as if they
are going to see a friend,
rather than a client.”

Stelios Piakis
CVS Coordinator

NATIONAL VOLUNTEER
WEEK (NVW): “GIVE A LITTLE,
CHANGE A LOT”
To celebrate NVW in May 2018, Fronditha
Care held its annual Volunteer Recognition
Ceremony at Merrimu Receptions.

Volunteers with 5, 10, 15, 20 and 25 years of
service were awarded and a special tribute
was made to Elly Franghis, a long service
volunteer and Life Governor who is now a
resident in our care.

Guest speaker was Ms. Irini Kassas, Young
Citizen of the Year 2018 in Newcastle, NSW,
a young and inspirational volunteer who
works at our Newcastle aged care facility.

During NVW, Fronditha Care’s aged care
facilities organised dedicated events to show
their appreciation for their contributions.

5 YEARS OF SERVICE
AGELIS Lemonia
GALATSIS Pashalis
KALOUDIS Sokratis
NICOLAIDIS Ermioni
CALOMBARIS Mary

10 YEARS OF SERVICE
HATZ Soula
KARANICOLAS Barbara
SOUBLIS Patty
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CHARALAMBIDIS Evangelia (Litsa)
FINIOTIS Despina (Daisy)
RIZOPOULOS Eleni
TAYLOR (Nikitakis) Jill

15 YEARS OF SERVICE
GEROSTATHOS Vicky
KARAKOUSSIS Irene
KORDARIS Tasoula
KOUTSOPOULOS Nick
SGARDELIS Panayiota
STOUPAS Mary

THEODOROU Georgia
KOUTSOHERAS Tasia
NAKAS Virginia
PEZAROS Nicki
PUCKEY Angeliki
THOMAS Eleni (Nitsa)

20YEARS OF SERVICE

25 YEARS OF SERVICE

ALEXANDROU Afrothiti

PROKOPIS Irene

TRIBUTE
FRANGHIS Elly
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EDUCATION AND TRAINING
OF VOLUNTEERS
The following sessions were presented
during the financial year:

VIRTUAL DEMENTIA EXPERIENCE

EQUIP4LIFE PROGRAM

The Virtual Dementia Experience immerses
participants in a home environment that
replicates the lived experience of a person
with dementia.

The Equip4life Program made adopting
healthy behaviours a simple process for
our volunteers. The program’s exercise
physiologists and dietitians provided
individually customised approaches including
health assessments and lifestyle prescription
programs for volunteers.

By completing this session the volunteers are
able to:
- see the perspective of someone with
dementia
- identify elements of a dementia-friendly
environment
- consider changes that can be made to an
environment to improve accessibility for a
person living with dementia

“IT’S AMAZING HOW PEOPLE
REACT WHEN THEY HEAR THEIR
NATIVE LANGUAGE SPOKEN.
THE SMILES WE GET, THE LOOK
OF HAPPINESS TO BE ABLE
TO COMMUNICATE IN THEIR
MOTHER LANGUAGE, THE LIFE
STORIES THEY TELL US. THEY
JOIN US IN SINGING OLD TIME
POPULAR GREEK SONGS. TO
US, AS VOLUNTEERS, IT IS VERY
FULFILLING.”
- Mary

60

A combination of one-on-one sessions
and group sessions covered a variety of
evidence-based topics, including healthy
eating, proven exercise strategies, weight
loss and maintenance, stress management
and improving sleep.

“FOR ME IT’S AN HONOUR TO BE
LET INTO THEIR HOMES, INTO
THEIR LIVES, INTO THEIR HEARTS.
THE ELDERLY TRUST YOU WITH
THEIR EMOTIONS, AND WHEN
YOU WALK OUT YOU CARRY
THEM INTO YOUR HEART; IT’S
PRICELESS!”
- Anastasia

2018 MULTICULTURAL
LEADING CITIZENS AWARDS
Clare O’Neil MP, Shadow Minister for Justice
and Federal Member for Hotham presented
Awards to volunteers who have made
noteworthy contributions to the community
on an ongoing basis.

Ms. O’Neil noted that within two generations
the Greek community has made a huge
contribution to Australia and its culture.

The Fronditha Care volunteers that were
awarded were;
•
•
•

Malamidis Christos
Stamatopoulos Despina
Limneos Evangelia
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HUMAN
RESOURCES

The Fronditha Care Human Resources
Department is responsible for the strategic
and day-to-day management of our people.
During the reporting year 2017/18 the
Human Resources Department undertook
many important projects and activities.
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INDUCTION PROGRAM
Fronditha Care welcomes new employees to
the organisation through a formal induction
program. This provides new starters with a
structured and supportive introduction to
their roles and responsibilities, the different
departments of the organisation, the area
they work in and Fronditha Care as a whole.

The first induction program for 2018 was
held on 23 May at the Fronditha Care
Support Hub. Overall, feedback was highly
positive with staff describing the program as
a productive learning experience, where they
learnt a great deal about the organisation’s
history and work ethos, and enjoyed meeting
senior staff.

LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT
ONLINE LEARNING PLATFORM

LEADERSHIP SUCCESSION PLAN

All Fronditha Care residential facility
and community services staff are given
access to a range of learning material
through an online learning platform. The
online platform offers 107 online courses
related to residential care and 52 online
courses for community services. The aim
is to empower staff by providing them
with training opportunities other than the
mandatory training requirements. Staff
members were able to develop their skills by
undertaking a course of their preference or
a learning plan that they feel they needed
to focus on. The training is self–paced which
means participants can schedule training
that meets their individual needs and time
constraints.

A four-month Leadership Development
Program was rolled out in July 2017 that
gave participants a chance to gain a better
understanding of leadership principles and
focus on developing greater self–awareness
and awareness of others.

159
ONLINE COURSES
AIMED TO EMPOWER
AND EDUCATE STAFF

In this powerful, informative and interactive
program, participants were able to identify
how to best capitalise and build upon their
leadership skills and build or maintain a
positive, professional and constructive team
environment built on respect and rapport.
At the end of this program, employees were
able to transfer the acquired leadership
traits into practice.

“A WORKFORCE THAT IS WELL
EQUIPPED WITH THE NECESSARY
KNOWLEDGE AND IS WELL SUPPORTED
IN THEIR ONGOING LEARNING AND
DEVELOPMENT WILL BE ABLE TO
MEET THE CHALLENGES OF THE
FUTURE WITHIN A HIGHLY DYNAMIC
WORK ENVIRONMENT, WHILST AT
THE SAME TIME PERFORMING AT HIGH
STANDARDS.”
-Kathleen Fisher, Executive Manager
Human Resources
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A GREAT WORKPLACE
The move to the new Fronditha Care
Support Hub at Mulgrave in February
2018 was marked with a positive response
from the majority of employees who,
despite the longer distance and travel
time, demonstrated increased levels of
satisfaction and engagement. A series of
health and wellbeing initiatives took place
to not only make the transition as smooth
as possible but also promote organisational
resilience.
This year a major focus for the HR team
has been promoting Health and Wellbeing in
the workplace. Wellness–centred programs
not only have a real potential to positively
influence the workplace environment but
they also make a significant contribution to:
•
•
•
•

reduced absenteeism
increased productivity
talent retention
overall improved corporate image in the
long run

After the launch of the Support Hub at
Mulgrave in February 2018, staff have
provided a great deal of positive feedback
to Human Resources.
We would like to encourage all employees,
front line staff, supervisors and managers
to lead by example and actively participate
in health and wellbeing initiatives and
thereby make Fronditha Care a healthier
organisation and a leader in the provision of
aged care services.
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“THE NEW FC SUPPORT HUB BUILDING IS
EVERYTHING I EVER ENVISIONED MYSELF
AS MY IDEAL WORKPLACE, I AM SO PROUD
TO BE PART OF THIS TEAM”
“I WAS ALWAYS OF THE VIEW THAT IT IS
THE SMALL THINGS THAT MATTER THE
MOST AND I AM SO DELIGHTED TO SEE
THAT FRONDITHA CARE PAYS ATTENTION
TO BOTH THE BIGGER PICTURE AND THE
SMALL DETAILS THAT MAKE EMPLOYEES
HAPPY”
“I WAS EMPLOYED ON A THREE-MONTH
FIXED-TERM CONTRACT AS I WASN’T
PLANNING TO COMMUTE FOR AN HOUR TO
WORK ON A DAILY BASIS. NOW THAT I’VE
SEEN WHAT FC IS ABOUT I ASKED FOR MY
CONTRACT TO BE EXTENDED.”

672
STAFF WORKING AT
FRONDITHA CARE IN
2017-18

THE LIFE! WELLNESS PROGRAM

HUSH PUPPIES

This was rolled out to all staff with the
objective of providing each person with the
necessary knowledge and tools to adopt a
healthier lifestyle or modify their habits in
order to either reduce the risk of or prevent
three chronic diseases: Type II diabetes,
cardiovascular conditions and stroke.

A few years ago Fronditha Care introduced
smart, contemporary uniforms for all staff,
including administration, managers and
executives at no cost to the employee. This
enabled everyone working at Fronditha Care
to look smart and presentable and, based
on the type of uniform and colours, also
designated their work category. Fronditha
Care was approached by the organisation
Brand Collective who offered all employees
the opportunity to purchase the Hush
Puppies brand of shoes at a reduced
cost. This enabled many staff to purchase
quality shoes for themselves and for family
members.

The Life! Program ran for a total of six
months and consisted of a combination
of group and 1-1 consultation sessions.
Employees had to undergo an initial physical
assessment, attend the seminars and, if
need be, make modifications to their diets
or exercise activities. Each participant was
provided with an individual plan to ultimately
improve their health.

VISION TESTING
As part of our commitment to the wellbeing
of our staff members Fronditha Care
introduced free eye testing at all our
residential care facilities and Support Hub.
Employees were given the opportunity
to make an appointment with qualified
optometrists and could also access
competitive rates on prescription glasses.

MEDITATION SESSION
A Health & Wellbeing survey was conducted
at the Support Hub that showed the vast
majority of participants indicated interest
in attending meditation and yoga sessions
outside their working hours. Meditation and
Yoga classes are becoming increasingly
more popular as people discover the health
benefits. In response to our employees’
request an introduction of ISHA Meditation
and UPA Yoga took place at the Support
Hub.
“I feel happier and ready for the day ahead.
This is great!” one of the participants stated.
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EMPLOYEE PROFILE
DEMOGRAPHIC DATA
A workforce analysis was undertaken in
July 2018 and the results below provide
information regarding Fronditha Care’s
current workforce including gender and
age distribution, languages spoken and
employment status.

GENDER DISTRIBUTION
The table below highlights that 80 per cent
of all staff employed at Fronditha Care are
female. This reflects a common difference
in gender within the aged care industry,
showing that workplace preferences of
females are more aligned with aged care
services, and that they are perhaps more in
demand by the ageing and elderly clients of
Fronditha Care.

80%
PROPORTION OF
FEMALE STAFF
EMPLOYED AT
FRONDITHA CARE

Table 1 – Gender Distribution
Gender			Number of Employees		Percentage
Male				133					20%
Female			539					80%
Total				672					100%
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LANGUAGES SPOKEN
Sixty-one different languages are spoken by
staff at Fronditha Care. Greek continues
to be the most spoken language with 265
staff members, or 41.7% per cent of all
staff, nominating this as their first language.
This is followed closely by English, of which
164 staff members, or 25.8 per cent of all

staff, stating English as their first or second
language. Other languages spoken include
Hindi, Punjabi, Tagalog, Amharic, Chinese,
Italian, Russian and Nepali. This broad range
of languages spoken demonstrates the
enormous level of cultural diversity which
exists at Fronditha Care.

61 Languages
spoken at Fronditha
Care

Malay
Malayalam
Maltese
Mandarin
Maori
Macedonian
Nepali
Niuean
Nuer
Persian
Punjabi
Punjari
Romanian
Russian
Samoan
Serbian
Shona

Africans
Albanian
Amharic
Arabic
Azamo
Bahasa
Bengali
Burmese
Cantonese
Chinese
Croatian
Dari
Dutch

English
Ethiopian
Filipino
Finnish
French
Greek
Hebrew
Hindi
Hindustani
Hungarian
Igbo
Indu
Italian
Kannada
Khmer
Korean
Luganda

Sinhalese
Somali
Spanish
Swahili
Tagalog
Tamil
Telugu
Thai
Tibetan
Tongan
Turkish
Ukrainian
Vietnamese
Visayan			
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AGE DISTRIBUTION
Table 2 provides a broad snapshot of the
age-groups of the Fronditha Care workforce.
The majority of employees sit in the 45 to 54
years old cohort, comprising 24 per cent of
the workforce or 163 employees.
Not surprising is that only 7 per cent of
employees sit in the 18-34 year cohort which
is reflective of Australian wide statistics
which indicate that the aged care sector
employs more older people than other
industries.

Fronditha Care employs a considerable
number of more mature employees, of
which 18 per cent are between the age of
55-64 and 7 per cent, who are over the age
of 65. This demonstrates that Fronditha
Care values and supports the employment
of older workers which aligns with current
worldwide employment trends. This suggests
that older people are delaying exiting the
workforce and are staying at work for as long
as possible.

Table 2– Age Groups
Age Group		Count		Percentage
18-24			48		7%
25-34		143		21%
35-44		157		23%
45-54		163		24%
55-64		114		18%
65 +
		
47		
7%
Total			672		100%

49%
OF WORKFORCE
AGED OVER 45

EMPLOYMENT STATUS
Table 3 – Employment Status
Employment status
Number Employed		
Percentage
Permanent P/T		377				56%
Permanent F/T		90				14%
Casual			205				30%
Total				672				100%
As can be seen from Table 3, the largest
component of the Fronditha Care workforce
is comprised of part-time employees with
56 per cent sitting in this category. This is
followed by casual employees who make up
30 per cent of the workforce. Only 14 per
cent of employees at Fronditha Care are
employed on a full-time basis. This data is
supportive of current patterns which, over

recent years, have shown a shift away from
full-time employment to that of a more
part-time or casual nature. The dominance
of part-time and casual employment
at Fronditha Care is reflective of the
importance we place on providing flexibility
and opportunities for employees to achieve
a work-life balance.
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LABOUR AGREEMENT
After negotiations with the Department of
Home Affairs, Fronditha Care secured a
second Labour Agreement in June 2018.
The agreement has a life of five years
and allows the organisation to continue
sponsoring people with Greek language skills.
The new agreement also enables Fronditha
Care to nominate a set number of people,
who have worked for a total of four years on
a 457 visa sponsored by Fronditha Care, to
apply for permanent residency. This initiative
will enable Fronditha Care to retain a skilled
and experienced workforce with Greek
language skills across all sites and services.
Services provided by Fronditha Care aim
to ensure that Greek speaking elderly
are able to live in a residential facility or
independently remain at home and be
supported by an agency which shares their
language, history, religious values, attitudes,
rituals, celebrations, music and food. In
essence, all the elements that have, and
continue to play, a central role in their lives.

The Greek community is currently reaching
a peak in terms of requiring residential aged
care services and recent research confirms
this. With this anticipated growth the
pressure to source Greek speaking people
with the appropriate qualifications and ability
to speak and read English will increase.
The existing labour agreement employees
represents only 4.25 per cent of the total
number of employees and with the second
labour agreement we expect to see this
would likely increase to 8.25 per cent.
It is within the context outlined above that
Fronditha Care will keep seeking methods
to retain its current skilled, Greek-speaking
workforce to continue to provide culturally
appropriate aged care services to the most
frail of our society.

ARISTON INSTITUTE
Fronditha Care has commenced the process
of applying to become a Registered Training
Organisation (RTO) and CRICOS Provider
(Commonwealth Register of institutes and
Courses for Overseas Students).

This process is being managed by the recent
appointment of Ms Fleur Limpus as the
Education Manager at Fronditha Care. Fleur
has extensive experience in establishing and
operating registered training organisations.

The purpose for establishing the Registered
Training Organisation is to train international
Greek speaking students in CHC33015
Certificate III Individual support for the
purpose of recruiting as personal care
workers across Fronditha Care’s Residential
services. It is also an opportunity to upskill
existing Fronditha Care staff.

Ariston Institute will be located on the
ground floor of the Corporate Hub at 16
Anzed Court, Mulgrave. Refurbishment of
the ground floor as a training/conference
venue is due to commence shortly.
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STAFF AWARDS 2018
Every year we thank our impressive and
long-serving staff members at the Fronditha
Care Staff Awards ceremony.
The four categories that employees are

awarded under are: Service, Excellence,
Safety, Outstanding contributions.
Below are the names of the individuals who
were awarded in 2018:

25 YEARS OF SERVICE
AWARD
Maria Kouimtzis

20 YEARS OF SERVICE
AWARDS
Sandor
Anna		
Vicky		
Katerina

Fagyas
Minas
Tzouvelis
Velissaris

15 YEARS OF SERVICE AWARDS
Georgia
Maryam
Sofia		
Stavroula

Christopoulos
Issa
Keretzidis
Kourkoutzelos

Gloria		
Padma
Mark		
Elena		

Monisse
Subasinghe
Taylor
Antoniou
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10 YEARS OF SERVICE AWARDS
Sosoli		
Helen		
Marie		
Carole		
Josefina
Helen		
Ruby		
Kishani		

Agafili
Apostoleros
Branzuela
Downs
Garlick
Giannetakis
Griffin
Hallock

Eleni		
Eva		
Magdalini
Priyanthi
Efthimia
Irene		
Tutauira
Georgia

Iliopoulos
Karanja
Karasavidis
Kariyawasam
Panagiotou
Panagopoulos
Tearii
Tiganis

5 YEARS OF SERVICE AWARDS
Chris		
Ambelidis
Lhamo		
Choedon
Inesha		
Dassanayaka
Fevronia
Fermanoglou
Christina
Georgandis
Jaspinder
Kaur
Harmanpreet Kaur
Jagdish
Kaur
Juvy		
Ksiazek
Payal		
Kumar
Sisko		
Malowney
Khoryom
Nyuon
Mary		
Panagiotidis
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Anastasia		 Parthimos
Hinetutuoterang
Peka
Ralph			Rodrigo
Christopher		
Sementriadis
Baljinder		 Singh
Androniki		 Soklevska
Stella			Starc
Angela			Stopajnik
Louisa			Storer
Panagiota		 Tikfessis
Jayson		 Vinod
Androniki		 Zougoulos

EXCELLENCE AWARDS
Ioannis		
Sylvia		
Tracey		
Peter		
Ruhallah
Renae		
Katie		
Ngoni		
Eleni		
Magdalini
Dimitra
Vasilios
Armela

Andreanidis
Tzimas
Calleja
Egan-Lee
Hamidi
Hammond
Hooper
Hwenjere
Iliopoulos
Karasavidis
Katsavou
Kostrivas
Koule

Odysseas
Thomas
Sohrabkha
Rose		
Anna Mae
Gurjant
Lakhveer
Ann		
Georgia
Maria		
Demitra

Kripotos
Nianiakos
Pathan
Pikis
Shrestha
Singh
Singh
Sisamotos
Tzempetzi
Xenaki
Zeglinas

SAFETY AWARDS
Ioannis		
Andreanidis
Aliki		
Kyrkou
Deepak Bala Prabhakar
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OUTSTANDING CONTRIBUTION AWARDS
Khoryom ‘Tut’ Nuyon,
Personal Care Assistant,
TEMPLESTOWE

A resident refers to him as being ‘the son of
God’
Individuals have made comments that he is
a gentleman, whom the residents respect.
He has a quiet, gentle nature, with special
warmth.
Tut is known to be an efficient and diligent
worker who also assists new staff.
He has a great sense of humour and enjoys
a laugh with his colleagues.

It was stated “What a Personal Carer!” Tut
has a persona that radiates the message to
families of residents that your parents are in
good hands.

Vicki Derbas, Brokerage
Services Coordinator,
COMMUNITY SERVICES
Vicky has made a positive impact on the
lives of Fronditha Care clients and other
employees.
Vicky worked above and beyond to ensure
that the clients received their required
care and services when the services &
administration team underwent a major
upheaval in 2017 with the implementation of
the new iCare rostering system.
Vicky never complained and volunteered to
work weekends to input data in to the new
system during the implementation stage.
She trained and supported new colleagues
and personal care workers.
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Family of residents have commented that his
patience is executing what is necessary for
not only their parents, but is observed when
caring for the other residents. They have
stated that he cautiously undertakes every
aspect of others needs, from feeding the
residents to talking to them calmly. Family
members have also observed him making
sure a resident is positioned comfortably,
even if it is ‘by a centimeter’.
One family member has stated that
Fronditha Care is blessed to have Tut as
staff, as he is a Superman PCW to all people
he comes across.

Her colleagues have stated that her
generosity of spirit helped them to pulltogether and keep pushing through a
massive transition for community services.

PUBLIC
ENGAGEMENT
Fronditha Care has an extensive public
engagement program that has continued
and improved through media promotion,
social media platforms, community events
and ongoing engagement with various
stakeholders.

The reporting year’s highlight was the 3XY
Fronditha Care Radiothon 2018 which was
the major fundraising appeal of the period
and saw more than $137,000 pledged.
Satellite sites were open during the
Radiothon weekend and more messages
of support from prominent figures in the
aged care industry, federal, state and
local governments, the private sector and
prominent community groups were received.
In the media, our weekly Monday AM radio
show on 3XY Radio Hellas has continued to
keep the community informed of Fronditha
Care’s services and the changing aged care
landscape.
We have continued to focus on our residents,
staff and volunteers by sharing their stories

through our weekly and monthly publications
in Melbourne’s Greek newspapers, Neos
Kosmos and Ta Nea, and wider Australian
media (Newcastle Weekly, The Star, SBS,
3ZZZ, ABC etc).
Our public profile has also benefitted
from increased presence at festivals and
community consultations with Fronditha
Care at the Lonsdale Street Greek Festival
(February 2018), Oakleigh Glendi (November
2017) and SMR Alliance Conference
(October 2017).
The Oral History of Fronditha Care is in
its final stages and will include a detailed
pictorial history of the organisation over its
40 years.
Our public affairs team also organised and
assisted with the execution of numerous
Fronditha Care internal and external events
and coordinated meetings with Federal
Minister for Aged Care Ken Wyatt, the
Consul General of Greece in Melbourne
Dimitrios Mihalopoulos and AHEPA.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
NICK THODOS
PRESIDENT
Appointed November 2012
Attended 11 meetings of an eligible 12
B.Ec., LL.B. (Monash), LL.M. (Melbourne),
M.B.A. (Oxford), G.A.I.C.D.

FAYE SPITERI
VICE PRESIDENT
Appointed December 2009
Attended 7 meetings of an eligible 12
BA., GradCert PubRelations

Nick Thodos joined the Fronditha Care board
in November 2012, and has been President
since January 2016. He is the Convener of the
Governance Committee and a member of the
Communications Committee. He has previously
served as Secretary of the organisation.
Nick has significant legal and management
experience. He co-founded electricity retailer
Click Energy and was Chairman of its Board
until the company was sold in July 2012. He
was previously a banking and finance lawyer at
global law firm Baker & McKenzie, the Australian
Bankers’ Association, and HSBC Bank. Nick is
currently a director of a commercial property
business. He is a member of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors.

Faye Spiteri joined the Fronditha Care
board in December 2009 and is the current
Vice President. She is a member of the
Governance Committee and Convener of the
Communications Committee.
With a background in strategic leadership
roles across the public, corporate and Third
sectors, she has a unique perspective on the
challenges and successes that organisations are
experiencing today and recognizes the critical
role the Fronditha Care leadership team has
in crafting a company vision that has the best
possible outcomes for the community.
Faye is a Partner at Hall & Partners, a leading
global strategic brand consultancy. She is an
integrated campaign specialist with broad
expertise in all aspects of multi-channel
communications and has wide experience in the
design, development and evaluation of social
marketing and brand positioning campaigns. Faye
has led development of multiple award-winning
projects that have engaged audiences and driven
behaviour change and was a recipient of the
Premier’s Achievement Award. Faye is a member
of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
JILL TAYLOR (NIKITAKIS)
SECRETARY
Appointed May 2013
Attended 7 meetings of an eligible 12
B. Bus. (Accounting), CPA

JACOB FRONISTAS OAM
TREASURER
Appointed August 1981
Attended 11 meetings of an eligible 12
B.Sc., LL.B., LL.M.

Jacob Fronistas has been a member of the
Fronditha Care board for 37 years and is a
Life Governor of the organisation. He has held
numerous positions on the Board, including being
President from 1988 to 1994 and 1998 to 2007,
as well as Senior Vice-President, Junior Vice-

Jill Taylor joined the Fronditha Care board in 2013.
She is the Secretary, and is a member of the
Risk Management & Finance Committee and the
Communications Committee.
Jill is a director of Power Lending Group Pty
Ltd, a finance consulting firm. Prior to that, she
performed as a licensed investigator for JBSA
Consultants (Investigations & Reviews), focussed
primarily on matters of forensic fraud as well
as highly sensitive cases, such as the abuse of
children in State care. Prior to this role, Jill was
employed as Chief Financial Officer of Silver Top
Taxi Service Ltd, where in addition to leading
the Finance function, she sat on the Company’s
Takeover & Mergers Committee. In this role, she
was instrumental in the purchase of SilverComm
P/L, a business she later came to lead as General
Manager. During her time with Silver Top, Jill was
also appointed to the Ministerial Committee for
Public Transport as a key representative for the
taxi industry. Jill has spent the majority of her
career in the accounting sector, as a registered
company auditor, as a tax consultant for DBA
Accountants and as a Partner with Greenfield Fox
Hansen P/L.
President and Assistant Treasurer. He has been
the Treasurer since 2012 and the Convener of the
Risk Management & Finance Committee.
Jacob received an Order of Australia medal
in 2006 for his voluntary work in the Greek
community, specifically in aged care. Jacob is a
Barrister and a member of the Victorian Bar since
1983; Jacob is an Accredited Mediator. He was
the Chairperson of the Federal Government’s
Greek Community Aged Care Steering Committee
from 1994 to 2000, and a Contributor to the
working party for Equitable Delivery of Services
to the Ethnic Aged, which was under the auspices
of the Ethnic Communities Council of Victoria
in 1998. He has served on the Board of other
organisations including 4 years as the Treasurer of
the Kastellorizian Association of Victoria, 4 years
on the Antipodes Festival Board and 2 years on
the Asclepius Board. Jacob is a member of the
LASA Financial Discussion Group.
For his voluntary work for the Greek elderly, Jacob
has received the Victorian State Government
Certificate of Appreciation for voluntary service
to the community (2001), Victoria’s Multicultural
Award for Excellence for Meritorious Service to
the Community (2012), and the Hellenic Distinction
for Community Welfare (1991). In 2000, he was
recognised as Kastellorizian of the Year.

TIM DIONYSSOPOULOS
Appointed June 2016
Attended 11 meetings of an eligible 12
LLB, BSc (Hons)

Tim Dionyssopoulos joined the Fronditha
Care board in 2016. He is the convener of
the Research and Community Engagement
Committee.
Tim is currently a member of the Community
Advisory Committee for the Southern
Metropolitan Cemeteries Trust, and has
been a legal volunteer at Pronia (Australian
Greek Welfare Society) for over 14 years. He
has previously been a board member at the
Southern Migrant and Refugee Centre, as well as
member of the Committee of Management of
the Springvale Multicultural Men’s Shed, helping to
establish Victoria’s first multicultural men’s shed.
Tim is a Principal at Maurice Blackburn, a
leading social justice law firm, and, since 1999,
an Accredited Specialist in Personal Injury Law.
He is a member of the Law Institute of Victoria,
and the Australian Lawyers Alliance, and has
been a past member of various committees for
those organisations. Tim has extensive legal and
management experience, and has completed
the Leadership Development Program at the
Melbourne Business School.

EFFROSSINEY (SOULA)
CARGAKIS
Appointed November 2016
Attended 9 meetings of an eligible 12

Soula Cargakis joined the Fronditha Care board in
2016, and is a member of the Risk Management
& Finance Committee.
Soula started her career in financial services
in 1987 and over the last 30 years has held
numerous senior management roles. She is
currently the CEO of Association Advisory
Practices that she founded in 2006, a subsidiary
of Centrepoint Alliance where she has worked for
the past 13 years. She is also on the executive
team of Centrepoint Alliance responsible for all
distribution and marketing for the group and has
been a member of a number of advisory boards.

PAUL MAVROUDIS OAM
Appointed July 2010
Attended 10 meetings of an eligible 12

Paul Mavroudis joined the Fronditha Care board
in July 2010. He has served as a member of the
Communications Committee and is currently a
member of the Policy & Research Committee.
He is the Sales Manager of Parthenon Travel, a
well-established travel business for 32 years.
Paul is a member of the Greek Orthodox
Community of Melbourne and Victoria and was
a member of the Pan-Macedonian Association
of Melbourne and Victoria, where he has held the
position of Vice-President and was responsible
for Public Relations for many years. Paul is a
member of the Victorian Branch of SAE World
Council of Hellenic Abroad and he is in charge of
Public Relations. He is currently the President of
the Thessaloniki Association and has served the
association from that capacity for six years.
In 2009, he received an Award for Excellence
in Multicultural Affairs from the Victorian State
Government. In 2010, Paul became the President
of the Hellenic Cultural Council. In recognition for
his service to the Greek community, Paul was
awarded an Order of Australia Medal in 2015.

A/PROFESSOR GENIE
PEDAGOGOS
Appointed December 2017
Attended 7 meetings of an eligible 7
MBBS, FRACP, PhD AFRACMA

A/Professor Eugenia Pedagogos is a Nephrologist
as well as Medical Director and Director of
Medical Innovation at Epworth HealthCare. She
has a strong track record of research, education
and high quality clinical services delivery. A/
Professor Pedagogos is passionate about
providing the very best in patient care and about
optimising research and implementing change.
She has an excellent track record for
collaborating with researchers both nationally
and internationally and has extensive experience
as a physician in public and private health
services settings. She actively contributes to the
operational and quality management activities in
organisations and has a reputation for fostering
collaborative working relationships with medical,
nursing and allied health staff.
She has been an invited speaker to national
conferences or symposia and has published over
50 articles and abstracts and has a keen interest
in clinical governance having chaired multiple
committees at state and local level as well as
having served as an elected Board Member
of the Royal Australian College of Medical
Administrators.

PROFESSOR GEORGINA
TSOLIDIS
Appointed October 2013
Attended 1 meeting out of an eligible 1
B.A., Dip. Ed., B. Ed., Ph.D., Master of
Counselling

Georgina joined the Fronditha Care board in
2013. She was the Convener of the Policy &
Research Committee until July 2017.
Georgina has held various academic positions
including professorial positions at Monash and
Federation Universities. She previously worked
in government carrying out research and policy
analysis including with the Ministerial Advisory
Committee dealing with cultural diversity in
education. She has significant experience
managing and carrying out research within the
university context, as well as with other public
and private bodies. Georgina has specialised in
multicultural policy and cultural diversity over
many years and has published extensively on
related issues, including with specific reference
to the Greek diaspora. She has been on several
academic boards. She has been responsible
for Masters courses related to policy and
governance and has consulted on leadership
and management within the public and private
sectors.
Georgina is currently Adjunct Professor with
the Alfred Deakin Institute for Citizenship and
Globalisation (Deakin University); President of the
International Sociological Association Research
Committee on Racism, Nationalism and Ethnic
Relations, and Director of Proptika Pty Ltd
(Counselling and Consulting).

CR MIKE ZAFIROPOULOS
AM JP
Appointed June 2009
Attended 11 meetings of an eligible 12
B App. Sc.; Dip Comp. Sc.; Cert. Television
Production.

Mike Zafiropoulos joined the Fronditha Care
board in 2009. He served as President of
Fronditha Care and Convener of the Governance
Committee from 2010 to 2015.
Mike has extensive experience in the not-forprofit sector and during 1992-1993 served
as Mayor of Fitzroy. In 2002, he was awarded
“Victoria’s Award for Excellence in Multicultural
Affairs”; in 2005, he received FECCA’s award for
“Contribution to Multiculturalism”, and, in 2010,
he was awarded the Order of Australia (AM) “for
service to the community, through executive roles
with a range of arts, multicultural, charitable,
media and local government organisations,
and as an advocate for cultural diversity and
harmony”. In 2012, he was the recipient of
HACCI’s Excellence in Community Service Award.
Between 1995 and 2007, Mike was General
Manager of SBS, Melbourne. During 2003 and
2012, he served on the Board of the Royal
Victorian Eye and Ear Hospital, between 2003
and 2014, he served as a Director of the Lord
Mayor’s Charitable Foundation, since 2009 he
chairs the Channel 31 Board, and since 2014 he
chairs the board of the Speak Greek in March
campaign. In 2016, he was elected Councillor and
Deputy Mayor of the City of Manningham.
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SUMMARISED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 JUNE 2018
The directors present their report on Fronditha Care for the financial year ended 30 June
2018.
1. Operating results and Company objectives

Operating Results
The result of the Company to 30 June 2018 was an operating surplus, before depreciation
and interest, of $2,272,162 and a net deficit result, after depreciation and interest, of
($1,356,222). In 2017, a net surplus of $42,431 was recorded. The result reflected the
significant investment by the company in future growth and increased operating costs.

Company Objective
Fronditha’s aim is to become a leading aged care provider within the culturally and
linguistically diverse communities and the community at large. The organisation’s objectives
are to work towards:
- Clayton Aged Care Facility refurbishment, Stage II completed in October 2017, and Stage III
expected to be completed in May 2019.
- Rebuild the 60 bed St Albans Aged Care Facility including an extra 30 Beds.
- Expanding the number of community home care packages spread across metropolitan
Melbourne to 290 by June 2019 and a community home care packages program to be
established in NSW by 2019.
- Become a leading agency in the development and practice of happiness and wellbeing for
the elderly.
- Maintain best practice in the area of client/resident risk, in particular the area of elder
abuse.
- Establish community volunteer support groups within each region of metropolitan
Melbourne.
- Maintain a culture which encourages staff to attain the highest qualifications and
experience within their field.
- Strengthen alliances with other service providers, peak bodies, think tanks, universities,
business, interstate partners and community groups and organisations.
- Enhance risk management process.
- Further develop environmentally sustainable practices.
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The above objectives will be implemented through the Strategic Plan and annual operational
plans developed by Senior Staff. The operational plans include key result areas (objectives):
Effective Governance, Plan & Develop New Services, Financial Sustainability, and Enhance
Life Experience of the Fronditha Community, Leadership in the Field, Environmental
Sustainability, Learning Organisation, Community Relations, Information Technology and
Happiness & Wellness. The CEO reports to the Board of Directors regularly on progress
against the objectives.

2. Other items
Significant changes in state of affairs
There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the
year.

Events after the reporting date
No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which
significantly affected or could significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results
of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

Future developments and results
The strategic plan objectives will enable Fronditha Care to provide:
- Care that is flexible and responsive to residents changing needs, ensuring legislative
standards are achieved and surpassed.
- Adhere to documented processes, policy and procedures and constitutional provisions.
- Promote continuous improvement based on investigation of systems, implementing
effective corrective action and introducing innovation.
- Train and develop staff and continue to improve the health and well-being program.

Environmental issues
The Company’s operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulations
under a law of the Commonwealth or of a State or Territory of Australia.
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SUMMARISED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018

FRONDITHA CARE
ABN 71 424 124 816
Summarised Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018
Relationship of the summarised financial statements to the full financial statements
The summarised financial statements are an extract from the full financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2018. The financial statements and specific disclosures included in
the summarised financial statements have been derived from the full financial statements.
The summarised financial statements cannot be expected to provide as full an
understanding of the financial performance, financial position and the financing and investing
activities of Fronditha Care as the full financial statements. Further financial information can
be obtained from the full financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
						Note		2018			2017
						2		$			$
Revenue					
								45,806,993		43,568,696
Government grants arising on
recognition of fair value of ZRIL loan			
(63,044)		
(313,763)
Employee benefits expense					(32,199,043)		(29,805,904)
Depreciation and amortisation expense			
(3,425,509)		
(3,456,670)
Client care expenses						(5,081,894)		(4,655,102)
Loss on sale of assets					(123,415)		Other expenses						(6,129,768)		(5,162,465)
Interest expense						(140,542)		(132,361)
Surplus/(loss) before income tax				(1,356,222)		42,431
Income tax expense						-			Surplus/(loss) for the year					(1,356,222)		42,431
Other comprehensive income/(loss),
net of income tax
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year		
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(1,356,222)		

42,431

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
								2018			2017
								$			$
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents					14,702,616		1,470,442
Trade and other receivables				1,717,004		1,507,244
Other financial assets					9,034,370		23,523,837
Other assets							359,813		334,228
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS					25,813,803		26,835,751

NON‑CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment				74,229,290		66,198,086
Intangible assets						14,526,000		14,526,000
TOTAL NON‑CURRENT ASSETS				88,755,290		80,724,086
TOTAL ASSETS						114,569,093		107,559,837

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables					4,927,964		4,206,467
Borrowings							37,799,939		29,543,006
Other financial liabilities 					5,023,977		4,912,709
Employee benefits						124,354		TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES				47,876,234		38,662,182

NON‑CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings							3,769,644		5,222,333
Employee benefits						1,265,311		661,196
TOTAL NON‑CURRENT LIABILITIES			5,034,955		5,883,529
TOTAL LIABILITIES						52,911,189		44,545,711
NET ASSETS							61,657,904		63,014,126

EQUITY
Reserves							960,211		1,023,255
Retained earnings						60,697,693		61,990,871
TOTAL EQUITY						61,657,904		63,014,126
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
2018
				RETAINED
CAPITAL
ZRIL GRANTS		TOTAL
				EARNINGS DONATIONS RESERVE
						RESERVE
				$		$		$			$
		
Balance at 1 July 2017
61,990,871
Surplus for the year		(1,356,222)
Transfers from retained
earnings to general
reserves			63,044
Balance at 30 June 2018

244,036
779,219		
63,014,126
-		-			(1,356,222)

-		(63,044)		-

60,697,693 244,036

716,175		

61,657,904

2017
				RETAINED
CAPITAL
ZRIL GRANTS		
TOTAL
				EARNINGS DONATIONS RESERVE
						RESERVE
				$		$		$			$
		
Balance at 1 July 2016
61,634,677 244,036
1,092,982		
62,971,695
Surplus for the year		42,431		-		-			42,431
Transfers from retained
earnings to general
reserves			313,763
-		(313,763)		Balance at 30 June 2017
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61,990,871

244,036

779,219		

63,014,126

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
								2018			2017
								$			$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from residents					13,372,664		10,100,583
Government subsidy receipts				30,374,885		28,916,401
Donations received						343,739		342,270
Interest received						488,679		596,661
Finance costs							(140,542)		(132,361)
Other trading income					893,825		4,512,056
Payments to suppliers and employees			
(41,751,615)		
(40,025,449)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
3,581,635		
4,310,161
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net (acquisitions of) other financial assets			
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment		
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment		
Net cash used by investing activities			

14,489,467		
(11,656,632)		
76,504		
2,909,339		

(7,261,525)
(5,108,811)
28,640
(12,341,696)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from/(repayment of) bank loans		
(1,842,858)		
(1,077,847)
Net proceeds from accommodation bonds		
8,584,058		
4,128,481
Net cash used by financing activities			
6,741,200		
3,050,634
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents held					13,232,174		(4,980,901)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year		
1,470,442		
6,451,343
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year
14,702,616		
1,470,442
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DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Statement of Comprehensive Income
The result of the Company to 30 June 2018 was an operating surplus, before depreciation
and interest, of $2,273,162 and a net deficit result, after depreciation and interest, of
($1,356,222). In 2017, a net surplus of $42,431 was recorded. The result reflected the
significant investment by the company in future growth and increased operating costs.
The Company’s total revenue increased by $2,238,297 (5.1%) since the prior year, whilst
expenses have increased by $3,636,950 (8.4%) and Depreciation & Interest decreased
$22,980.
Individual items that impacted 2018 results include:
- An increase in residential income of $537,471 due to high occupancy rates and an increase
in the number of beds at our Clayton facility as part of Stage II Pronia development.
- An increase in Community Services income of $1,797,285 as a result of the rapid
expansion of our Home Care program. This includes an increase of 40% in the number of
clients Fronditha supports with home care services.
- The wonderful contributions from our community of $343,739 in donations, the 3XY
Radiothon and our hard working auxiliaries.
- An increase in operating costs for Employment benefits and Client expenses.
- Employment benefits expenses have increased $2,393,139 as a result of salary increases
under the Enterprise Agreement, increased staffing levels for new beds in the Clayton
facility and the rapid growth of Home Care services
- Client Expenses have increased $426,792 as Fronditha continues to expand Lifestyle,
Therapy and Resident services to our residential clients and the increased services provided
through Home Care.
- Depreciation will continue to be a significant cost reflecting the Company’s investments in
new facilities and infrastructure including Clayton (Stage III Galini – 50 new beds), St Albans
(a new 92 bed facility subject to council approval) and the Mulgrave Support office.
Statement of Financial Position
The Company’s net assets have decreased by $1,356,222 since the previous year.
A significant investment in occurred in Fixed Assets, which increased by $8,031,204, with the
purchase of the Mulgrave Support Office, Mt Martha and Clayton redevelopment.
Liabilities have increased by $8,365,478 largely due to an increase in RAD’s held by
$8,584,058 offset by repayments of ZRIL and Thornbury loans of $1,452,689.
Cashflow Statement
Operating activities provided net cash of $3,581,635 which is a decrease of $728,526
compared to the previous year.
Cashflows from operating activities, along with cash inflows from RAD were used to repay
debt, fund capital construction and purchase financial assets.
Events Occurring After the Reporting Date
No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which
significantly affected or could significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results
of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
1
Basis of Preparation of the Summarised Financial Statements
The summary financial statements are an extract from the full financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2018.
The full financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Aged Care Act 1997.
2

Revenue and Other Income
Revenue from continuing operations

							2018				2017
							$				$
Revenue from continuing operations
‑ Government subsidies				32,727,900			30,820,384
‑ client fees						10,804,633			10,272,624
‑ accommodation payments			85,599			109,299
‑ donations						343,739			342,270
‑ rental revenue					424,802			395,640
‑ home care fees					284,489			428,402
‑ other interest received				488,679			596,661
‑ other trading revenue				647,152			603,416
Total Revenue					45,806,993			43,568,696
3

Events Occurring After the Reporting Date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or could significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of
those operations or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.
4

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is Fronditha Care’s functional and presentation currency. No foreign currency transactions existed in the year ended
30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).
5

Segment information

The entity operates in only one business and geographical segment being the provision of
residential aged care services in Australia.
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DIRECTOR’S DECLARATION

The entity operates in only one business and geographical segment being the provision of
residential aged care services in Australia.
The summarised financial statements, comprising the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of cash flows, statement
of changes in equity and accompanying discussion and analysis and notes to the financial
statements are set out on pages 1 to 6.
The summarised financial statements are an extract from the full financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2018. The financial statements and specific disclosures included in
the summarised financial statements have been derived from the full financial statements.
The summarised financial statements cannot be expected to provide as full an
understanding of the financial performance, financial position and the financing and investing
activities of Fronditha Care as the full financial statements. Further financial information can
be obtained from the full financial statements.
This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Dated 3 October 2018
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BENEFACTORS
ORGANISATIONS
AHEPA Victoria Inc
Delphi Bank
Delta Sales Pty Ltd
DPoA Group (Diplomatic Privileges of Australia)
EEAMA, Philanthropic Society of Greeks from Egypt and The Middle East
Greek Orthodox Community of Box Hill
Hippocrates Australian Greek Aged Persons Association
Kapiris Bros.
Manasis Dance Group
Nafsika Stamoulis Foundation
NIKPOL Pty Ltd
Philanthropic Syllogos - Dimos Meligala Messinias

INDIVIDUALS
Nick
Andreas
Stelios
Ignatios
Stan
Dimitrios
Spiridoula
Helen
Con
Arthur
Paula

Andrianakos
Andrianopoulos
Angelodemou
Balasis
DeMangos
Floratos
Floratos
Kalaboukas
Kyritsis
Nakas
Palatsides

Meni
Harry
Anna
Nick

Stefanovski
Thodos
Vournazos
Vournazos

LIFE GOVERNORS
ORGANISATIONS
Bridge Street Indusrtial Clinic
Cretan Brotherhood Of Melb & Vic
Cypriot Community Of Melb & Vic
Ethel Herman Charitable Trust
Equity Trustees
Felton Bequest Committee
Flora & Frank Leith Charitable Trust
Tolhurst Druce & Emmerson
Greek Orthodox Community of Clayton
Greek Orthodox Community of Hobsons Bay
Greek Orthodox Youth of Australia-GOYA
Gregorios Lodge
Hellenic Freemasons Assoc of Victoria
H.V. McKay Charitable Trust
Ian Potter Foundation
Isobel Hill Brown Charitable Trust
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Trustees Australia Limited
Ithacan Philanthropic Society
Jack Brockhoff Foundation
Limnos Poultry Pty Ltd
Marathon Food Ind. Pty Ltd
Marian & E.H. Flack Trust
Morea Architects
National Australia Bank
Perpetual Trustees Australia Limited
Port Melbourne Greek Community
PRONIA
Sidney Myer Fund & Myer Foundation
South Melbourne Soccer Club
Tatts
Tim & Terry Oyster Supply Pty Ltd
William Angliss (Victoria) Charitable Fund

LIFE GOVERNORS
INDIVIDUALS
Akritidis
Alatsas
Andreou
Antoniou
Antoniou
Bellesis
Beris
Bisas, OAM
Catsaras
Constantinou, OAM
Constantinou
Courmadias
Darivakis
Demetriou
Dunstan
Economou
Franghis
Frangioudaki, OAM
Fronistas, OAM
Gabriel, OAM
Grountas
Grountas
Hagekyriakou
Hatzipandelis
Iatrou
Kabastanakis
Kaimakamis
Kallergis
Kalodimos
Kapiris
Karas
Karathanassis
Konstantinidis
Kotis
Kyritsis
Leith
Livingston
Mantzis
Hatzisimeonidis
Moschidis
Mougos
Nakas
Novakoglou
Novakoglou
Pagonis
Pagonis
Panayis
Petrakis
Pliakos

Anthy
Spiros Ross
Lito
Bill
Freda
John
Anthony
Marika
Pota
Conn
Patricia
Evangelia
George
George
Raymond
Peter
Elly
Rena
Jacob
Rita
Anita
Stefanos
Dina
Pandelis
Maroula
Phillipas
Stefanos
Kostas
Jim
Harry
Chrissa
Chrisostomos
Nikos
Melina
George
Peter
Joan
George
Vasilis
Spiros
Bessy
Virginia
Sam
Joanna
Helen Kathleen
Leigh
Andreana
John
Steve

Revis
Rivans
Saltos
Salvaris
Sarhanis
Sevdalis
Skitzis
Smith
Soldatos
Soldatos
Stamoulis
Takouridis
Taylor
Theodoulou
Tsagaris
Tseprailidis
Varagianis
Varagianis
Vassos
Vetsicas
Vitou
Vournazos
White
Yianni
Zimaris

Tasos
Evangelia
Athanasios
John M
George
George
Helene
R
Irene
Angelo
Helen
Koula
Katina
Andrew
Nick
Anastasios
George
John
Nicholas
Angela
Anthony
Betty
Beverley Joy
George
Klara
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LIFE MEMBERS
Adgemis
Alateras
Alexandrou
Anastasiou
Andriopoulos
Augoustakis
Bafitis
Balakis
Beasley
Bellesis
Bellesis-Lubliner
Bossinakis
Boukogiannis
Cambel
Cargakis
Carydias
Christophi, AM
Chryssafis
Daglis
Demetriades
Demetriou
Demetriou
Demetriou
Demetriou
Demetriou
Demetriou
Demetriou
Digiaris (Danigelis)
Dimitriou
Dimopoulos
Doubaras
Drougas
Feretopoulos
Flessias
Fonias
Floudas-Tsementzis
Galanis
Galanis
Georgalas
Georgalas
Georgas
Giakoumidis
Giakoumidis
Golias
Hadzidimitriou
Haralambous
Hletsos
Iatrou
Iliadis
Jones
Kalodimos
Kanagios
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Betty
Antonis
Terry
John
Peter
Savas
George
Bill
Anastasia
George
Henriette
Jim
Tom
Stavros
Efrossiney (Soula)
George
Chris
Chryssavgi
Ellada
Rita
Andreas
Andrew
Anni
James
Phiv
Loulla
Spiridoula
Dimitra
J.
Maria
Rita
Helen
Vickie
Antonios
Duke
Kon
Dimitrios
Georgia
Constantine
Carmel
Panayiota
Dimitrios
Helen
Angela
Anastasios
Betty
Fotios
Filitsa
Solon
Gary
Anastasios
Mary

Kanitsaki, AM
Katsoulis
Kokkinias
Kokkinos
Kolivas-Tsourvakas
Kordaris
Kotomatas
Kotsiros
Kouris
Koutsoheras
Kyritsis
Kyritsis
Liakatos
Liveriadis
Lolatgis
Loukides
Marangoudis
Marendy
Michael
Mitrakas, OAM
Moisi
Moraitis AO, CBE
Moses
Mylonas
Mylonas
Nicolaou
Papaefstathiou
Papanicolaou
Paras
Pezaros
Polites
Psanoudakis
Psanoudakis
Rose (former
Triandafylidis)
Salvaris
Samargis
Savas
Seremetis
Seremetis
Skitzis
Sourlos
Sourlos
Sourlos
Spiteri
Teo
Theodosi
Theodosi
Theodoulou
Thouas
Tiliacos, JP
Velmahos

Olga
Helen
Arthur
Spyros
Pauline
Tassoula
Leo
James
Eftymia
Tasia
Helen
Joanna
Aspasia
Panagiotis
Anthony
Penelope
John
Anna
Penelopi
Eugenia
Michael
Spiros
Dora
B
Helen
Anna
Marina
Nicholas
Chris
Niki
Nick
Efthymios
Theodora
Michael
Anna
Mary
Pota
Aris
Augusta
John
Chris
Nick
Sofia
Faye
Coula
Christopher
Loulla
John
Basil
Michael
Ioannis

Velmahos
Xypolytos
Zafiropoulos, AM, JP
Zervas, OAM, JP

Mariathi
Vicki
Mike
Nicholaos

MEMBERS
Polita
Angela
Peter
Helen
George Nicholas
Violet
Adam
Maria
Joyce
Eugenia
Jasmin
Evangelia
Christina
George
Georgina
Poppy
Spyros
Antonios
Despina
Maria
George
Kathy
Tim
Anne (Pam Joanna)
Martha
John
Paul
Toula
Anthoula
Dennis
Despina
George
Nick
Lydia Christine
Jill

Fotinelis
Katavolos
Katavolos
Kioussis
Verginis
Yiannopoulos
Lepidis
Axarlis-Coulter
Hadjiantoni
Pedagogos
Verginis
Yianni
Despoteris
Midas
Tsolidis
Doufas
Doufas
Sakavaras
Stamatopoulos
Stefanatos
Stoupas
Anasta
Dionyssopoulos
Kalodimos
Karatsioris
Katsoulis
Mavroudis, OAM
Mavroudis
Paraskeva
Patisteas, OAM
Protopsaltis
Tacticos
Thodos
Wilson
Taylor (Nikitakis)
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AUXILIARIES
TEMPLESTOWE
Nakas
Koutsoheras
Karas
Georges
Gabriel
Tandos
Paraskeva
Agrotis
Keldoulis
Thomas
Frangioudaki
Mougos
Melios
Sevdalis
Stoupa
Puckey
Toussas
Giannakopoulos
Andrianopoulos

Virginia
Tasia
Chrissa
Georgina
Rita
Judy
Anthoula
Adriana
Anne
Eleni
Rena
Bessy
Efy
Theano
Mary
Angeliki
Dora
Faye
Joanna

ST ALBANS
Calombaris
Rizopoulos
Finiotis
Charalambidis
Karvela (Loupos)

Mary
Eleni
Despina
Evangelia
Anastasia

THORNBURY
Pezaros
Gazis
Soublis
Hatz
Karanicolas
Katiforis
Katsandonis
Tsindos
Sklivas
Yiannaros
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Nicki
Claire
Patty
Soula
Barbara
Helen
Christina
Fred
Despina
Vicky

VOLUNTEERS
Adoniadis
Agelis
Alexandrou
Amvazas
Andonopoulos
Angelopoulos
Antoniou
Apostolakos
Arabatzis
Arapoglou
Athanasiou
Babalis
Beharis
Bardakos
Boras
Bousounis
Bradas
Bromidis
Chalkias
Christakakis
Dare
Daskalaki
Deliyannis
Diamantopoulos
Dionyssopoulos
Drouvalakis
Efthymiadis
Evripidou
Flessias
Galatsis
Galerakis
Georgalis
Georgiou
Gerostathos
Giannakis
Giannes
Giannes
Giannes
Giannicopoulos
Gionis
Gountaras
Gouzos
Grigoriou
Haralampidis
Hargreaves
Hatzikonstantinos
Kaimenopoulos
Kalaboukas
Kallitsi
Kalodimos
Kalogeratos
Kaloudis

Athanasios
Lemonia
Afrothiti
Assimenia Litsa
Cathy
Zoi
Simeon
Stamatia
Anna
Myrofora
Athas
Paraskevi
Theofanis
Anastasios
Joanna
Kaliopi
Irene
Mina
Stella
Aggeliki (Angela)
Anastasia
Gina
Politimi
Konstantinos
Stella
Evangelos
Haido
Panayota
Antonios
Pashalis
Maria
Stavroula
Patroklos
Vicky
Fani
Evangelos
Dimitra
Panagiotis
Theodoros
Anastasios
Fani
Georgina
Georgia
Christina
Joanna
Helen
Angela
Evangelos
Angela
Jim
Anna
Sokratis

Kalpouzos
Kanellis
Karageorgiou
Karakoussis
Karapetsas
Karpetis
Katiforis
Katounas
Kavellaris
Kay
Kazanis
Kehagias
Kioseoglou
Kioussis
Kokonis
Kolokythas
Kordaris
Kosmidis
Kostaras
Kotsiris
Kourkoutzelos
Kourlinis
Koutsopoulos
Kravarski
Kyprianou
Law
Liagourdis
Ligouris
Limneos
Loukas
Loupelis
Loupis
Malamidis
Malliadis
Marinakis
Markogiannaki
Marras
Mavromihalis
Mavroudis
Milonas
Misserlis
Moshoulis
Mougos
Moutafis
Mylonakis
Nicolaidis
Nicolopoulos
Novak
Ntantanis
Opasinis
Orfanidis
Paglialonga

Kyriaki
Vassiliki
Theodora
Irene
Eleftherios
Eva
Eleni
George
Anna
Maria
Nick
Carrol
Theognosia
Helen
Angela
Aspasia (Soula)
Tasoula
Eleni
Athanasios
John
Nikolaos
John
Nick
Giannoula
Rodoula
Vicki
Julie
Paraskevi
Evangelia
Stella
Stelios
Mary
Christos
Alexandra
Malama
Dimitra
Olga
Katerina
Aleka
Marianthi
Anthony
Theodora
Bessy
Eftihia
Steve
Ermioni
Kay (Koula)
Sarandi (Sam)
Antonios
Maria
Anatoli
Delia
99

VOLUNTEERS
Panagiotopoulos
Pangratis
Pantas
Papacostas
Papakonstantinos
Petroutsos
Pourliakas
Prokopis
Protopsalti
Psiharis
Rassios
Sahinidis
Sarantos
Sgardelis
Sotirellis
Stamatopoulos
Stamatopoulou
Stefanatos
Stefanidis
Stellas
Stoupas
Tamvakis
Theodorou
Tioulis
Trainedes
Tricha
Tsaousidis
Tsiaousidou
Tzaferis
Van Exel
Vidakis
Vlahopoulos
Vlahopoulos
Zervas
Zindilis
Zlenska

Nicoletta
Kathy
Xanthi
Dimitra (Loula)
Stella
Chrisanthi
Fay
Irene
Despina
Voula
Konstantinos
Eleni
Sophie
Panayiota
Nikolaos
Despina
Panagiota
Maria
Alexandros
Georgia
Mary
Anastasia
Georgia
Vaios
Mary
Polixeni
George
Maria
Vasilios
Katerina
Maria
Anne
Panagiotis
Nikolaos
Kiara
Olga

NSW
Peterkin
Breen
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Leslie Angus
Christopher

STAFF
Acikyol
Adam
Agafili
Agas
Aglipay
Aguelo
Aguelo
Akras
Ambelidis
Amoo
Anagnostopoulos
Anagnostou
Anastasopoulou
Anastopoulos
Andreanidis
Andrianakis
Andriolas
Androulakis
Angeli
Anota
Antoniou
Antonopoulou
Apostoleros
Apostolou
Armenis
Asomaliu-Agafili
Athanassiadis
Avramidou
Ayele
Badhan
Bagiartakis
Bahtsevanis
Bajwa
Balston
Baltas
Baltounis
Barka
Barker
Benberu
Bendrycheva
Bikakis
Birhanu
Bitzas
Bognar
Borgonah
Borji
Bourdouvali
Brachimai
Bragagnolo
Branzuela
Brennan
Bromell

Bulent
Panagiotis
Sosoli
Roselito
Steve
Peter
Cherry
Effie
Chris
Velina
Joanne
Agni
Effrosyni
Jenny
Ioannis
Evgenia
Georgia
Ioannis
Zoe
Sofia
Elena
Maria
Helen
Fotini
Konstantinos
Fulumanu Junior
Nickolas
Maria
Almaz
Ishwinder
Heleni
George
Satinderdeep
Gundalina
Nicholas
Anastasia
Toulia
Lizabelle
Dasbar
Elena
Sylvia
Abeba
Petros
Renee
Yvette
Somayeh
Panagiota
Tzenisa
Maria
Marie
Clare
Sara

Bryans
Calingin
Calleja
Calvert
Carrall
Carson
Chaithanu
Chawla
Cheema
Choedon
Christidi
Christopoulos
Christopoulos
Chrysanthou
Chung
Cooke
Cornish
Cosma
Couvara
Cox
Crooks
Cvetanaski
Dallas
Dangllia
Dassanayaka
Dato
Davies
DeBrincat
Deer
Del Mar
Delaney
Demosthenous
Derbas
Dernikos
Devine
Devitt
Dhliwayo
Dhoot
Dimakos
Dimitriou
Dinas
Dogaris
Donaldson
Downs
Doymanis
Dragas
Dumre Chapai
Dunlavie
Duraku
Ebi
Egan-Lee
Ellis

Helen
Nino
Tracey
Krystle
Jasmine
Emerenciana
Kanthatkan
Anurag
Kamaldeep Kaur
Lhamo
Athina
Georgia
Maria
Eirinoulla
Kyung
Glenda
Judith
Annica
Anastasia
Angela
Janelle
Sammi
Anna-Maria
Mimoza
Inesha
Rolando
Lisa
Rita
Karen
Josefina
Paul
Loukia
Vasiliki
Dina
Julie
Kathy
Tapiwa
Sharnjit
Haido
Angelique
Mary
Tom
Sue
Carole
Constadino
Christina
Parbati
Dasinee
Gjyltene
Nivya
Peter
Mandy
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STAFF
Erevnidis
Erigbuagas
Fagyas
Faridi
Fasili
Fermanoglou
Filolli
Findlay
Fisher
Fisher
Fogarty
Fountis
Fragkos
Friquin
Fuseini
Garlick
Garratt
Georgandis
George
Georgiadi
Georgiou
Georgiou
Georgiou
Giannakopulos
Giannetakis
Giannouli
Gigliotti
Gilekas
Giourousi
Gomes
Gomolis
Goulias
Goura
Gouraros
Gourgolitsas
Grampsa
Gray
Grewal
Griffin
Griva
Gruber
Gu
Habeb
Hall
Hallock
Halvatsiotis
Hamidi
Hammond
Harisis
Haritakis
Hatzisalata
Hondros
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Panayiota
Victor
Sandor
Jingelyn
Ioanna
Fevronia
Irida
James
Janice
Kathleen
Jodie
Kay
Dimitrios
Marie
Humu
Josefina
Laurey
Christina
Tinu
Panagiota
Sophie
Paskalina
Zacharoula
Anna
Helen
Georgia
Maria
Dimitra
Charikleia
Furny
Angeliki
Efstratios
Katia
Angelo
Nektarios
Aikaterina
Stephanie
Paramjeet
Ruby
Gianoyla
Karina
Junhui
Loseia
Brenda
Kishani
Maria
Ruhallah
Renae
Anita
Polymnia
Anastasia
Marina

Hooper
Horvath
Hum
Hwenjere
Iliopoulos
Ioakimidis
Ioannidis
Iroeche
Issa
Ivkovic
Jagota
Januari
Jenkins
Jim
John-Mustafa
Jones
Joseph
Joseph
Kaaya
Kaitatzi
Kaitatzis
Kakka
Kalat
Kamitsou
Kandel Rjjal
Kanellopoulos
Kapnias
Kapoor
Karagiannis
Karagiannis
Karamitani
Karanja
Karasavidis
Kariyawasam
Kassas
Kastrati
Katsambanis
Katsavou
Katsiouras
Kaur
Kaur
Kaur
Kaur
Kaur
Kaur
Kekulthotuwage
Keles
Keretzidis
Khan
Khatri
Khinda
Khorshidi Dehaghi

Katie
Helen
Sichan
Ngoni
Eleni
Konstantina
Sofia
Obinna
Maryam
Radmila
Samarth
Chelsie
Jasmine
Wai Hang
Lilliana
Ross
Biju
Ajo
Elisa
Emmanouela
Sotirios
Elli
Azeb
Styliani
Yashoda
Georgios
Efthimia
Monika
Melina
Kally
Anna
Eva
Magdalini
Priyanthi
Irini
Brixhida
Catherine
Dimitra
Kathrine
Baljit
Jagdish
Harmanpreet
Jaspinder
Harpreet
Jasneev
Ganga
Kristina
Sofia
Ana
Deepa
Kamaljeet
Hamideh

STAFF
Kiomourtzis
Kiran
Koirala
Kornelaki
Kostrivas
Kotsakinou
Kotsaridis
Kotsifis
Kotsimbos
Kouimtzis
Koukouzikas
Kourkoutzelos
Krasniqi
Kripotos
Ksiazek
Kumar
Kumar
Kunnappilly Joy
Kyriakou
Kyrkou
Kyropoulou
Lamb
Lamprou
Latham- Capel
Lavelle
Lawrence
Leabres
Lekakis AO
Lekanis
Leptos
Levedelis
Liappis
Liappis
Lile
Limpus
Litsa
Lontos
Lukose
Lymchuk
Magtanong
Maikopoulos
Maldonado
Malhotra
Malla
Malowney
Manaridis
Manney
Manoussakis
Mantzaris
Maragkoudaki
Margariti
Marinis

Konstantinos
Kiran
Smriti
Anastasia
Vasilios
Panagiota
Tina
Evgenia
Eleni
Maria
Despina
Stavroula
Jurgen
Lefteris
Juvy
Payal
Pooja
Beljo
Eleni
Aliki
Evangelia
Carmelina
Sophie
Michael
Marian
Antoinette
Maylyn
George
Emmie
Helen
Rena
Katina
Stella
Christiana
Fleur
Panagiota
Stavroula
Joby
Hanna
Marian
Maria
Alejandra
Geetu
Jyoti
Sisko
Sofia
William
Angela
Alexandra
Konstantina
Aikaterini
Tina

Marinos
Marko
Mason
Mastorakos
Mathew Parambath
Mavrikios
McMurtrie
Mendosa
Mendoza
Michailidis
Michailidou
Milost
Minas
Miranda
Mladenoski
Molvali
Monisse
Monzon
Morris
Mougras
Moustridis
Mulakalapalli
Nagasundaram
Nair
Nath
Nayiga
Negash
Nianiakos
Nigro
Nilo
Nunez
Nyandora
Nyima
Nyuon
Oikonomou
Owen
Pacheco
Palihakkara
Panagiotidis
Panagiotou
Panagiotou
Panagopoulos
Panayides
Panieras
Papadakis
Papadopoulos
Papadopoulos
Papapetrou
Papioglou
Pappas
Paransothy
Parashos

Kalliopi
Christina
Frances
Stavroula
Leena
Sofie
Jennifer
Virgie
Kathreen
Ioannis
Vasiliki
Magdalena
Anna
Miralyn
Ema
Ievgeniia
Gloria
Amy
Carl
Maria
Maria
Radhika
Ramakrishnan
Joanne
Geeta Devi
Robinah
Hamere
Thomas
Paraskevi
Iris
Mary
Jeanne
Nyima
Khoryom
Dimitra
Emma
Bryan
Nilmi
Mary
Efthimia
Dimitrios
Irene
Helen
Virginia
Maria
Katerina
Ekaterini
Annamaria
Maria
Theodoros
Jesitha
Anastasia
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STAFF
Paraskevopoulos
Paroulidou
Parthimos
Pascalis
Pasoula
Pathan
Paul
Paulin
Pavlou
Pedersen
Peka
Pereira
Petrakis
Petrogiannis
Petropoulou
Petsavas
Piakis
Pikis
Politidis
Poulios
Priestley
Purba
Raigon Gonsalves
Ralston
Ramaswamy
Ranoa
Ranoa
Riley
Rodrigo
Rompante
Rossyn
Sachinidou
Sakelaropoulos
Saliba
Samartza
Sani
Sardana
Saunders
Saunders
Scalzo
Scantsonihas
Searl
Selemidis
Sementriadis
Seyoum
Sferopoulos
Shakeshaft
Sharma
Sheen
Shiakola
Shrestha
Siavelis
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Haralambos
Martha
Anastasia
Styliani
Ourania
Sohrabkha
Leah
Olivia
Chrisoula
Efthimia
Hinetutuoterang
Caroline
Joanna
Vasiliki
Aglaia
Amalia
Stylianos
Rose
Magdalini
Van
Alison
Gurpreet Kaur
Lincy
Jedidiah
Shaanthe
Gerry JR
Gliceria
Janine
Ralph
Adelaide
Andrea
Elefheria
Maria
Patricia
Soultana
Linson
Nisha
Katrina
Teegan
Connie
Jim
Narlene
Toula
Christopher
Freaheiwot
Kathy
Maeve
Rakesh
Wendy
Irene
Anna Mae
Konstantinos

Sibakoti
Sideras
Simopoulos
Simos
Sinclair
Singh
Singh
Singh
Singh
Siomou
Sisamotos
Skevofylakas
Skonis
Skouris
Snedden
Sofianopoulou
Sofronidou
Soklevska
Sotiriou
Souchon
Sraon
Stamatakis
Stamatopoulos
Stamatopoulos
Starc
Stefanatou
Stefanou
Stevenson
Stevenson
Steyn
Stopajnik
Storer
Subasinghe
Suzuki
Tachydromidou
Tamonan
Tastsidis
Tavoultzis
Taylor
Tearii
Teodoreskou
Terpkou
Terzakis
Terzakis
Thakur
Thavachelvan
Thind
Thiveos
Thuruthikattu Chacko
Tiganis
Tikfessis
Togia

Sangita
Dina
Sofia
Georgios
Susan
Pargatjit
Amrinder
Baljinder
Gurjant
Maria
Ann
Evangelina
Maria
Anthea
Carly
Christina
Evangelia
Androniki
Polyxeni
Louis
Kirandeep
Maree Jamie
Maria
Nikoletta
Stella
Angeliki
Mirella
Kim
Susan
Charmaine
Angela
Louisa
Padma
Evangeline
Theopoula
Cynthia
Paraskevoula
Vicki
Mark
Tutauira
Chionoulla
Theodore
Greg
Theo
Monika
Sutharsini
Manjit Kaur
Peter
Seenamol
Georgia
Panagiota
Evangelia

STAFF
Tolongos
Trasia
Triantafyllou
Tsangaris
Tsaousis
Tsianta
Tsolakis
Tsoutzidis
Turton
Twist
Tyssen
Tzanetatos
Tzempetzi
Tzortzoglou
Tzouvelis
Vasilantonakis
Vassis
Velissaris
Velissaris
Villa-Gouliovas
Vinod
Vranic
Vrasidas
Waja
Webb
Wesho
William
Williams
Wilson
Wilson
Woldearegay
Wolede
Woodruff
Workman
Wu
Xenaki
Xexaki
Yang
Yoganathan
You
Zaccaria
Zarmakoupi
Zeglinas
Zhang
Zhao
Ziakas
Zorbas
Zougoulos

Stella
Athanasia
Paschalia
Anna
Eleni
Maria
George
Eva
Janice
Suzanne
Yolanda
Kathy
Georgia
Vicky
Vicky
Paraskevi
Ourania
Katerina
Helen
Orlandina
Jayson
Vedran
Andreas
Eyerusalem
Josephine
Gemechu
Peter
Lynette
Christine
Helen
Azeb
Elizabeth
Christine
Alicia
I-Han
Maria
Dimitra
Wenyu
Vanathi
Vatthana
Rossella
Ourania
Demitra
Sujie
Guanghua
Panagiota
Danae
Androniki
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CONTACTS AND LOCATIONS
RESIDENTIAL SERVICES
VICTORIA
CLAYTON SOUTH
94 Springs Road, Clayton South 3169
(03) 9552 4100
MAYFIELD, NSW

LOWER TEMPLESTOWE
11 Omar Street, Lower Templestowe 3107
(03) 8850 5111
ST ALBANS
181 Furlong Road, St Albans 3021
(03) 9365 4300
INDEPENDENT LIVING UNITS
(03) 9365 4311

THORNBURY
ST ALBANS

TEMPLESTOWE
CLAYTON

THORNBURY
335 Station Street, Thornbury 3071
(03) 9495 2300

NEW SOUTH WALES

SUPPORT HUB
16 ANZED COURT, MULGRAVE VIC 3170
(03) 9552 4100

MAYFIELD, NEWCASTLE
30 Crebert Street, Mayfield 2300
(02) 4016 4160

COMMUNITY SERVICES
HOME CARE PACKAGES

@FrondithaCareOfficial

(03) 9552 4100

@FrondithaCare

ACCESS AND SUPPORT
(03) 9552 4127

Fronditha Care

PLANNED ACTIVITY GROUPS
(03) 9552 4117

Fronditha Care Channel

HOST HOME PROGRAM
(03) 9552 4117

frondithacare.org.au

VOLUNTEER PROGRAM
(03) 9495 2308 or (03) 9495 2311
BROKERAGE SERVICES
(03) 9495 2316

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
FRONDITHA CARE EXTENDS A HEARTFELT THANK YOU TO ALL WHO HAVE
GENEROUSLY EXPRESSED COMPASSION AND CARED FOR OUR ELDERLY.
YOUR SUPPORT IS VITAL AND ADDS VALUE TO THE SERVICES WE PROVIDE.

FRONDITHA CARE ACKNOWLEDGES THE CONTRIBUTIONS IN
2017-2018 FROM THE FOLLOWING VALUED MEMBERS
OF THE FRONDITHA CARE FAMILY:
FRONDITHA CARE RESIDENTS AND CLIENTS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEMBERS, BENEFACTORS AND LIFE GOVERNORS
STAFF
VOLUNTEERS
AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT
VICTORIAN GOVERNMENT
LOCAL GOVERNMENT
THE HIPPOCRATES AUSTRALIAN GREEK AGED PERSONS ASSOCIATION
THORNBURY AUXILIARY
TEMPLESTOWE AUXILIARY
ST ALBANS AUXILIARY
DONORS AND SUPPORTERS
THE FAMILIES AND FRIENDS OF OUR RESIDENTS AND CLIENTS
COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS
CORPORATE PARTNERS
MEDIA PARTNERS: GREEK MEDIA GROUP, ANT 1, ERT, NEOS KOSMOS, SBS,
NEWCASTLE HERALD, NEWCASTLE STAR
PHOTOGRAPHY BY GALLANT LEE
COMPILATION BY THE FRONDITHA CARE PUBLIC AFFAIRS TEAM
DESIGN BY DEMI ZEGLINAS

Bounty of care
www.frondithacare.org.au

